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Customers’ shopping habits have changed fundamental-
ly in the past few years. People are no longer shopping 
just online or just offline but often use the various pur-
chasing channels in tandem — the magic word here is 
Omnichannel. 

The top priority for mobilezone is to offer customers the 
best possible shopping experience across all sales  
channels. In order to meet this standard in the  future, 
mobilezone has made significant investments in the  
necessary infrastructure so that customers can receive the 
most clever offers — anywhere and anytime. 

Our Agent Clever answers the most important questions 
about Omnichannel in our annual report. 
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1 In percent of net sales.    2 In percent of the balance sheet total. 
3  Instead of distributing a dividend, the General Meeting decided on a share buyback program in the amount of  

10 percent of the outstanding shares at a fixed price of CHF 10.00 for the purpose of capital reduction. 
4 In accordance with the proposal of the Board of Directors to the General Meeting on April 6, 2017.

Key figures

Group

(CHF 000 or as indicated) 2016 % 2015 % 2014 % 2013 % 2012 %

Net sales 1 087 855 859 020 388 562 328 230 325 893

Gross profit 143 966 13.21 133 608 15.61 117 057 30.11 111 571 34.01 109 115 33.51

Operating profit (EBITDA) 54 255 5.01 47 388 5.51 37 171 9.61 34 683 10.61 34 738 10.71

Operating profit (EBIT) 48 471 4.51 40 434 4.71 29 197 7.51 25 782 7.91 25 133 7.71

Net consolidated profit 36 147 3.31 30 821 3.61 23 642 6.11 22 001 6.71 21 047 6.51

Total assets 192 887 162 368 100 048 120 780 110 182

Net cash & cash equivalents –66 152 –65 268 –10 992 -966 18 277

Shareholders’ equity –3 294 –1.72 –12 142 –7.52 32 110 32.12 42 781 35.42 66 194 60.12

Net cash from operating activities 40 440 20 020 30 513 35 244 22 429

Investments in property, plant & 
equipment and intangible assets 

9 809 6 460 6 963 6 903 9 486

Number of full-time  
employees as of December 31

878 918 843 828 741

Number of shops as of December 31 
 Switzerland 
 Germany

129
55

127
43

129 
n.a.

130 
n.a.

137 
n.a.

Data per title
(CHF 000 or as indicated) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Number of shares issued  
as of December 31 (pieces) 32 195 697 32 195 697 35 772 996 35 772 996 35 772 996

Weighted average number  
of outstanding shares (pieces) 32 179 994 32 195 697 33 187 461 35 624 414 35 622 988

Earnings per share –  
undiluted/diluted 1.12 0.96 0.71 0.62 0.59

Equity per share –0.10 –0.38 0.97 1.20 1.85

Payout per share 0.604 0.60 0.60 0.003 0.60

Share price (highest/lowest) 14.75/12.15 17.55/10.50 10.60/9.48 10.10/8.94 10.40/9.00

Share price as of December 14.50 14.35 10.55 9.40 9.66
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lot of money though, doesn’t it?»
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and the investment 
will pay off within 
a short time. 
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6 mobilezone overview

Significant growth in sales and profit. In fiscal year 
2016 mobilezone Group achieved sales in the 
amount of CHF 1,088 million (2015: CHF 859  million) 
and increased its operating profit by 20 percent to 
CHF 48.5 million (2015: CHF 40.4 million). In  
the segment Trade sales rose by 29 percent to   
CHF 1,012 million (2015: CHF 785 million) and the 
operating profit (EBIT) grew by 46 percent to  
CHF 40.6 million (2015: CHF 27.8 million). In the 
Segment  Service Providing sales increased by  
2.6 percent to a total of CHF 75.5 million (2015:  
CHF 73.6 million) despite a slight drop in order 
 volume in the repair business. Operating profit 
(EBIT) rose to CHF 8.1 million (2015: CHF 7.6 million).



7mobilezone overview • Brief profile

mobilezone Group is a telecommunications company headquartered in Regensdorf/Zurich. Its two 
business segments are Trade and Service Providing. The segment Trade includes the companies 
mobilezone ag, einsAmobile GmbH, and mobilezone business ag. The business segment Service 
Providing consists of TalkTalk AG, mobiletouch ag, and mobiletouch austria gmbH.

In addition to offering competent and independent advice for private and business customers re-
garding the price plans of all major providers for mobile phones, fixed-line telephony, Internet, 
and digital TV, as well as regarding repairs, mobilezone stands out for its extensive range of servic-
es: the company offers its own mobile phone insurance, buys back used mobile phones, and ac-
cepts mobile phones for repair in all its shops. In selected shops, express repairs are available in 
on-site service centers. To this extensive portfolio, the company has added the Canon Repair 
Center; it offers repairs of Canon cameras and home office equipment.

Thanks to the acquisition of einsAmobile, mobilezone also has a presence in Germany and sells 
mobile phone products online via various web portals and Partner shops since April. In addition, 
einsAmobile is active in the wholesale trade and also supplies specialist stores in Germany. 

Overall, mobilezone Group employs more than 900 people at its offices and shops in Regensdorf, 
Urnäsch, Zweidlen, Zug, Wien (A), and Obertshausen (D). 

The best solution for every customer

TRADE
Individual customers
• 129 shops in central locations and in the largest shopping 

centers all across Switzerland
• 55 Ashops in Germany (Partner shop) in addition to activites 

in the wholesale trade and supplying specialist stores
• Various web portals with online offers
• Largest selection of mobile phones, matching accessories, 

and wearables
• Advice regarding mobile phone, fixed-line, digital TV,  

and Internet subscriptions
• Independent partner of Swisscom, Sunrise, UPC,  

M-Budget, Telefónica Deutschland, Telekom, Vodafone
• Direct distribution partner of Apple, HTC, Huawei, LG,  

Microsoft, Samsung, Sony, and other manufacturers
• The range of mobilezone’s own services includes:  

mobile phone insurance, taking back used mobile phones, 
express repair services, among many others

Business customers
• On-site consulting for companies of any size
• Customized solutions in the area of fleet  

management and outsourcing
• Customizable web shop

SERVICE PROVIDING
Mobile and fixed-line telephony and Internet
• Own mobile phone (post- and prepaid), fixed-line,  

and Internet subscriptions 
• Aggregated invoicing 

Repair services 
• Repair of various brands of mobile phones, Canon cameras, 

and Canon home office equipment in Switzerland 
• Quick on-site repairs in eight selected mobilezone-shops  

(Service-Centers)
• Repair of mobile phones and other devices as  

well as repair logistics in Austria 

Business segments

TRADE

mobilezone Group 

SERVICE PROVIDING

TalkTalk

mobiletouchmobilezone B2B

einsAmobile

mobilezone B2C
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Record sales and increased consolidated profit 

mobilezone overview • Report to the shareholders

Dear Shareholders

mobilezone has increased its operating profit by 20 percent to CHF 48.5 million
In fiscal year 2016 mobilezone achieved record sales of CHF 1,088 million, an increase of 27 percent 
over the previous year’s figure. Based on a pro-forma consolidation in the previous year of the 
company einsAmobile as of January 1, 2015, sales for fiscal year 2015 totaled CHF 997 million com-
pared to CHF 1,088 million in fiscal year 2016. 

This very positive development is reflected in the 20 percent increase in operating profit (EBIT) to 
CHF 48.5 million (2015: CHF 40.4 million). Financial expenses rose by CHF 0.4 million to CHF 1.8 
million. The company’s tax expense amounted to CHF 10.7 million (2015: CHF 8.6 million). Conso-
lidated profit was increased by 17 percent to CHF 36.1 million (2015: CHF 30.8 million). In 2015 the 
pro-forma profit amounted to CHF 32 million.

Earnings per share were increased in the reporting year from CHF 0.96 to CHF 1.12. As of March 6, 
2017, the mobilezone share price was CHF 14.55 compared to CHF 14.35 at the end of December 
2015.

As of December 31, 2016, mobilezone‘s balance sheet shows cash and cash equivalents totalling 
CHF 27.0 million (2015: CHF 14.3 million ). At the end of the year, net current assets amounted to 
CHF 27.2 million (2015: CHF 42.6 million ). In the mobilezone holding ag individual financial state-
ments, shareholders’ equity amounts to CHF 54.7 million (2015: CHF 58.5 million).

The two business segments Trade and Service Providing have contributed to the positive result of 
fiscal year 2016.  

Segment Trade reports significant increase in sales and higher profitability 
The segment Trade includes activities in the company’s branch network extending throughout 
Switzerland, in the online business, in the B2B sector, and since April 2015 also the activities of 
the einsAmobile in Germany. 

The market environment in the retail business in Switzerland remains very demanding and chal-
lenging. In the first six months of fiscal year 2016 it became clear that the business strategies of 
mobilezone and Salt differ too widely to continue offering our customers attractive Salt products. 
Therefore, mobilezone focuses on its partners Swisscom, Sunrise, UPC, and TalkTalk and does 
no longer offer any Salt products since July 2016. 

A new shop concept with a completely new design was introduced in the mobilezone shops at 
Lucerne’s central station as well as in Bern Waaghaus, Hinwil, Geneva Rue de Carouge, Spreiten-
bach, Emmencenter, Zug Metalli, and Zurich Löwenstrasse. In November 2016 a new shop was 
opened at the Zurich central station (Shopville). In the current year several other shops will be 
remodeled in line with the new concept. 

Above all the online business but also the wholesale business in Germany showed record results 
both in terms of sales as well as operating profit. In particular, in Germany more than 200,000 
(2015: 150,000) mobile phone contracts were concluded online. With the launch of deinhandy.ch 
in May 2016, mobilezone took an important step in Switzerland toward applying its successful 
experience in Germany to the Swiss market. 

The segment Trade achieved an increase in sales of 29 percent, from CHF 785 million to  
CHF 1,012 million. The share of wholesale sales amounts to CHF 618 million (2015: CHF 422 milli-
on). EBIT rose from CHF 27.8 million to CHF 40.6 million, an increase of 46 percent. This positive 
development is primarily driven by the strong results in Germany.

Urs T. Fischer

Markus Bernhard
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Segment Service Providing reports increased profitability 
The segment Service Providing includes the company’s own TalkTalk mobile and fixed-line offers as well as the 
service business in Switzerland and Austria. 

Sales in the segment Service Providing grew from CHF 73.6 million to CHF 75.5 million, an increase of 2.6 per-
cent. EBIT rose by 6.6 percent to CHF 8.1 million. 

The profitability of the repair business in Switzerland and Austria developed very positively in the second half of 
fiscal year 2016 despite a decrease in the overall order volume by a total of 6 percent. 

TalkTalk’s sales and EBIT came in slightly below the previous year’s figures. Since summer 2014, mobilezone has 
been focusing its customer acquisition efforts regarding TalkTalk products on mobile offers. The share of mobile 
phone customers of TalkTalk’s total sales amounts to 37.5 percent (2015: 17.5 percent). In the area of mobile tele-
phony the number of customers grew to 39,000 (2015: 32,000).

Dividend proposal to the General Meeting 
A dividend of CHF 0.60 will be proposed to the General Meeting on April 6, 2017. If this proposal is approved, 
the  dividend of CHF 0.60 per registered share, less 35 percent Swiss withholding tax (anticipatory tax), will be 
paid out on April 13, 2017. Starting on April 11, 2017, the shares will be traded ex-dividend. Based on the share 
price at balance sheet date of CHF 14.50 (2015: CHF 14.35), this proposed dividend represents a dividend yield 
of  4.1 percent and an overall performance in the reporting year of 5.2 percent.  

Change in Group management 
In November 2016 mobilezone Group announced that the Group management will be expanded from three to 
five members by adding competent, younger persons from within the company’s own ranks. Effective January 
1, 2017, Murat Ayhan, Akin Erdem, and Roger Wassmer are new members of the Group management. Werner 
Waldburger has left the Group management at his own request and will continue to be available to mobilezone 
in the area Business Steering Schweiz.

In summary, mobilezone has achieved a very positive result in fiscal year 2016, and we are convinced that the 
company will be able to continue on this positive course in 2017. Additional Omnichannel and online efforts will 
further support this positive development. At this point we wish to thank especially our employees; with their 
 daily commitment they have made a successful fiscal year possible. Finally, we want to take this opportunity to 
thank you sincerely for your loyalty and your confidence in our company. 

Regensdorf, March 7 2017

 

Urs T. Fischer Markus Bernhard 
Chairman of the Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer
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channel for each of their various needs and 
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2016: Highlights of the year 

mobilezone overview • Events 2015

APRIL mobilezone shop opening at Lucerne’s central station 
mobilezone continues to optimize its stores and opens a new shop 
with a completely new design in a prime location at Lucerne’s central station. 

MAY mobilezone launches website 
deinHandy.ch 
The successful online platform deinHandy.de is 
now also available in Switzerland, thanks to 
 mobilezone. On this site customers can find the 
right mobile phone with the pricing plan that is 
best for them and can buy both the phone and 
the plan they want right there. 

JUNE Breel Embolo as mobilezone’s brand ambassador 
mobilezone and the footballer Breel Embolo are joining forces. 
The exceptional footballer of Schalke 04 and the Swiss national 
football team is now mobilezone’s brand ambassador.

JULY mobilezone introduces Apple Pay
Since July, mobilezone’s customers can pay for all products and 
services in any mobilezone-shops simply,  securely, and confi-
dentially with their iPhone. Apple Pay simplifies the payment 
process significantly. 

NOVEMBER mobilezone expands Group management to five members 
mobilezone expands its Group management at January 1, 2017 from three to five members, a step 
that takes into account the new Group structure. The company will add competent younger persons 
from within its own ranks to the Group management. 

NOVEMBER mobilezone opens a shop in 
ShopVille at Zurich central station 
mobilezone now has shops in three of the five 
Swiss train stations that have the highest foot 
traffic. In addition to Zurich, mobilzone is pre-
sent at the central stations in Basel and Lucerne.
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Three proven foundation pillars form the basis of mobilezone’s successful business development: 
independence, customer focus, and cooperative partnerships with mobile phone providers and 
device manufacturers. mobilezone offers private and business customers an optimal telecommuni-
cations portfolio that includes mobile, fixed-line, and Internet offers. Moreover, mobilezone offers 
customized communications and other services so that customers can use their telecommunications 
portfolio to better advantage and can continuously optimise it.

Customers 
To meet the needs of different customer groups, mobilezone is continuously optimizing its line of 
product range. In addition to the newest mobile phones, mobilezone offers its customers a large 
selection of accessories and wearables they can test in many of the shops. The new shop concept 
offers customers an even better shopping experience. Customers can also find the current exclu-
sive mobilephone and rate plan offers whether they shop online or visit one of the multiple mobile-
zone-shops. 

Employees
At the core of mobilezone is the firm’s staff of more than 900 employees, among them more than 
90 apprentices. Every day the employees contribute to the company’s success and make mobile-
zone what it is. With its flat hierarchy and open communication across all function levels, the 
company encourages the development of unconventional and promising ideas for the future. In 
this way, management and employees write  mobilezone’s continuing success story together. 

Partners
mobilezone’s lasting success as Switzerland’s largest independent sales partner is based on its 
 cooperative partnerships: the company has maintained long-standing partnerships with the mo-
bile phone providers: Swisscom, Sunrise, UPC, Telefónica Deutschland, Telekom as well as Voda-
fone, mobile phone manufacturers and suppliers. As a result, mobilezone can obtain attractive 
purchasing terms and can offer its customers a wide range of products. The company’s excellent 
cooperative partnership relationships are also reflected in the first Swisscom shop-in-shop being 
placed in the mobilezone shop at the Bellevue Zurich.

Shareholders
mobilezone plans to remain an attractive dividend-paying stock for investors. The company will 
continue its efforts to continuously increase the company value and to maintain an earnings-based 
dividend policy.

Public Relations 
As the leading independent telecom specialist, mobilezone plays an important role in the eyes of 
the public, both as attractive employer of more than 900 employees and as independent expert in 
the digital world. The company’s various platforms allow customers to easily and conveniently find 
information about current market trends, prices, and promotional offers. With the financial incen-
tives mobilezone offers customers in its buyback program, the company encourages customers to 
return used mobile phones that are still functional. Components in good condition are reused, 
 recycled, or disposed of in accordance with applicable regulations.  

mobilezone’s strategic direction



Their work will be 
simplified because 
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products is managed 
via a central platform. 

«What does the Omnichannel platform 
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16 Business segment reports

Reachable anytime and anywhere – Omnichannel

With Omnichannel mobilezone can offer customers 
all its products and services of the business segments 
Trade and Service Providing in a simple and self- 
explanatory way. 

This means that in the future customers can even  
stronger experience of the full capacities of  mobilezone 
Group anytime and across all channels.  After mobile-
zone remodeled several stationary shops in line with 
the new shop concept, the mobilezone web shop has 
also been given a new design. The newly designed 
web shop was launched at the end of  February 2017. 

Moreover, mobilezone is expanding its online  presence. 
Since April 2016, mobilezone has made the website 
www.deinhandy.ch available. There customers can 
find the right mobile phone and the pricing plan that 
is best for them. The platform is similar to the website 
www.deinhandy.de, which has been already establis-
hed successfully in the German market.
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mobilezone 

mobilezone is Switzerland’s leading independent telecom specialist in the area of mobile and 
fixed-line telephony. As the market leader, mobilezone offers the complete product range of mo-
bile phones as well as subscription plans of all the major providers (Swisscom, Sunrise and UPC) 
for mobile and fixed-line telephony, digital TV, and Internet. At mobilezone, customers find the 
largest selection of mobile phones and accessories and receive independent consulting and servi-
ces.

Market environment 
On the whole, mobile phone sales have declined slightly in a saturated market. The trend toward 
flat-rate plans continues. In the area of postpaid, more than 76 percent of the pricing plans 
 mobilezone sells are flat-rate plans of the network providers. Most of these flat-rate plans for  mobile 
and fixed-line telephony, digital TV, and Internet also include unlimited calling, messaging, and 
surfing. With these plans customers have a better overview of their costs and are not hit with a 
surprise at the end of the month. Flat-rate plans are especially attractive for frequent users, but they 
can also be worthwhile for occasional use. The demand for TV and broadband connections 
 continues to increase significantly at mobilezone. At the same time, more and more customers are 
giving up landline telephony. Thanks to the great variety of plans offered, competent advice is 
more and more important. With its skilled and professionally trained employees, mobilezone 
 offers its customers competent support in making purchase decisions for rate plans and mobile 
phone brands. 

Products
Like the popular iPhones 6s and 6s Plus in 2015, the successor models iPhone 7 and 7 Plus have also 
been selling very well. The market leader Apple continues to share the bulk of the Swiss market with 
the Korean manufacturer Samsung. Regarding the Samsung brand, the two top-selling models 
were the Galaxy S7 and S7 edge. The Galaxy models A3 & A5-2016 also sold very well and were in 
great demand. Smartphones with larger displays account for 28 percent (2015: 23 percent) of the 
total sold by mobilezone. In addition to the two big players Apple and Samsung, the Chinese 
 manufacturer Huawei has become a presence to be reckoned with in the future. With its models P9 
and P9 Plus, Huawei was able to increase its market share in the mobilezone shops to 6 percent 
(2015: 3 percent). By the end of November Huawei‘s model Mate 9 with a 5.9 inch display and 
 impressive rechargeable battery had moved to the top of the ranks. Other important new products 
in fiscal year 2016 were the HTC 10 with its uncluttered interface. The SONY Xperia X Compact was 
one of the better compact smartphones. Among innovation enthusiasts who want to use the 
 tomorrow’s technology today Google’s models Pixel & Pixel XL were popular. 

A look at the best-selling mobile phones at mobilezone shows clearly that Apple and Samsung 
continue to dominate the market. The smartphone share of the total mobile phones sold at 
 mobilezone comes to 95 percent (2015: 92 percent).

Trade: Private customers Switzerland 
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BEST-SELLING MOBILE PHONES OF MAJOR BRANDS AT MOBILEZONE

Samsung
Galaxy S7 edge

Huawei
P9

Apple
iPhone 6s

Samsung
Galaxy S7

Sony
Xperia X

Apple
iPhone 7

Samsung
Galaxy A3 (2016)

HTC
10

Apple
iPhone SE
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At the end of 2016, mobilezone operates 129 shops located in all larger towns and in shopping 
centers throughout Switzerland. 

Shops
mobilezone continues to optimize its locations and its shop concepts. In fiscal year 2016 the new 
shop concept was implemented in eight shops. The new concept’s captivating functionality and 
modern design offers customers an even better shopping experience. The functional furniture 
allows customers a clear overview of the newest products and accessories. All new devices and 
accessories can be tested on-site. 
 

SHOPS OPENED

Luzern, Bahnhof
Zürich, ShopVille Hauptbahnhof

NEW SHOP CONCEPT

Bern, Waaghaus-Passage 8
Emmen, Emmen Center 
Genf, Rue de Carouge 18
Hinwil, Einkaufszentrum Hinwil
Spreitenbach, Einkaufszentrum Shoppi-Tivoli
Zug, Einkaufs-Allee Metalli
Zürich, Löwenstrasse 54
Luzern, Bahnhof

Services
All mobilezone shops offer the company’s own insurance product, Protect Clever available, for 
Android and Windows mobile devices. In addition to Protect Clever, mobilezone also offers its 
customers the insurance product AppleCare+ for Apple devices; this insurance is sold in Switzer-
land exclusively by Apple and mobilezone. As an additional service, mobilezone offers the transfer 
of mobile phone data; this service is offered in the mobilezone shops as well as in the eight service 
centers. Here Customers benefit from rapid and secure data transfer that moves their data, such as 
contacts, photos, etc. safely and without caching from an old device to a new one. 

As an additional service, mobilezone offers a buyback program and buys back used mobile  phones 
for cash payment. With these services mobilezone continues to invest in expanding its range of 
offers so that it can provide its customers even more comprehensive services. 

Customer focus
The salespeople in mobilezone shops and the competent advice they provide embody what 
 mobilezone stands for. To make sure its salespeople can competently address the diverse needs of 
customers and find the optimal offer for them, mobilezone conducts training courses for all shop 
employees on an ongoing basis. The training is provided by the company’s own trainers and also 
by telecommunications service providers and manufacturers. With its own e-learning portal, 
 mobilezone ensures that its salespeople are at all times fully informed about new products,  services, 
and pricing plans. 

Customer focus and customer satisfaction even after a purchase are the product of comprehensive 
customer service. Via different channels, such as telephone, newsletter, or text messages, 
 mobilezone keeps customers informed about new mobile phone models and accessories, current 
promotions, and loyalty discounts. Moreover, customers can count on receiving competent advice 
from mobilezone’s customer service team, and they can interact with mobilezone on social media 
platforms. 

Eight selected shops have integrated Service-Centers, offering the option of quick on-site repairs:

Basel, St. Jakob Park / Bern, EKZ Wankdorf / Emmenbrücke, Emmen Center / Lugano, Palazzo Ransila /  
Rapperswil SG, Zentrum Sonnenhof / St. Gallen, EKZ Shopping Arena / Winterthur, Untertor 13 / Zürich, EKZ Letzipark
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Trade: Private customers Germany 

einsAmobile

einsAmobile specializes in arranging mobile contracts and in selling hardware. The company offers 
its services and products in 55 Ashop locations (Partner shop) as well as online via various web 
portals. In addition, einsAmobile supplies specialist stores. 

Market environment  
einsAmobile is a strategic sales partner of Telefónica Deutschland and also a strategic partner of 
the manufacturer Samsung Mobile Germany. Thanks to the strategic sales partnership with 
 Telefónica, einsAmobile also markets the core brand o2 as well as secondary brands, such as Blau, 
Ay Yildiz, and Ortel Mobile, and contributes decisively to the marketing of those brands. Thanks to 
the broad-based support of various manufacturers, einsAmobile can be flexible in responding to 
changes in the market. 

Range of services 
More than 800 listed specialist stores and 55 Ashops nationwide are supplied by einsAmobile. An 
important sector for einsAmobile is the online business via external platforms and its own web 
portals. The company’s product and service portfolio is extensive and tailored to the needs of its 
customers.  

Products and Hardware 
The company’s broad range of offers includes all currently marketed models of the major manufac-
turers, such as Apple, Samsung, Microsoft, HTC, Huawei, Sony, LG, and ZTE. Moreover, einsAmo-
bile also offers a wide range of products and services in areas connected with mobile communica-
tion, such as tablets and notebooks. Name-brand products for fixed-line telephony complete this 
wide range. 

Prices 
As a national distributor, einsAmobile works closely with all large network operators – Telefónica 
Germany, Telekom as well as Vodafone. As a result, einsAmobile offers a broad spectrum of pricing 
models for the core brands and secondary brands of all network operators. 
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Trade: Business customers 

mobilezone business 

mobilezone offers independent consulting and individual customer solutions in the area of telecom-
munications for small and midsized businesses as well as for large companies. In particular, mobile-
zone connects telecom providers, mobile phone manufacturers, and businesses, and in the process 
mobilezone supports companies in all industries with individual comprehensive solutions in the are-
as of fleet management and outsourcing. 

Market environment 
In a highly competitive market, the business customer sector, which is of strategic importance for 
mobilezone, developed positively. This development was possible even though mobile phone pro-
viders introduced new price plans that are less attractive for mobilezone. mobilezone has success-
fully extended its range of services for business customers with its new consulting and other servic-
es, such as fleet management and the newly introduced advance replacement service for repair 
orders from key accounts.

Services 
The consulting and other services mobilezone offers are geared to national and international busi-
nesses of any size and industry. Among other services, mobilezone offers a review of customers‘ 
current contracts, development of customer-specific order processes, the uncomplicated purchase 
of new and replacement devices, quick and efficient problem-solving when repairs are needed, as 
well as competent advice — all from a single source. The company’s spectrum of offers ranges from 
standardized products to complex, individual solutions for customers. Customers benefit from spe-
cial terms for new devices and from the many services offered in mobilezone’s 129 shops all across 
Switzerland. 

Complete outsourcing solutions
The specialists at mobilezone serve as general contractors and take over all the work connected 
with managing mobile phones and contracts. The consultants address the individual needs of their 
many different customers with customized offers in order to find the best solution for each custom-
er. This solution can include management of mobile phone contracts, equipment maintenance, and 
even insurance claim negotiation in the event of damage or loss. In each case, the goal is to create 
optimal time and cost savings for the business customer. 

Customized web shop 
The mobile phones and price plans available to a company’s employees can be displayed by mo-
bilezone in a customized web shop. The web shop is created in collaboration with the business 
customer and is tailored to that customer’s specific requirements. In addition to device purchases, 
the entire administration of a company’s mobile phone pricing plans is displayed. From updating 
an address to ordering options, customer requests are processed with a new ticketing system. 
Moreover, thanks to the integration of customer-specific authorization processes, mobilezone can 
address customer needs at a deeper level.
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Each of them brings his or her own 
strengths to the project, and that’s how 
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Service Providing

Business segment reports • Service Providing

TalkTalk

TalkTalk offers services in the areas of mobile phones, fixed-line telephony, basic access, and Internet.  
All TalkTalk products are also available throughout Switzerland in any of the 129 mobilezone-shops. 

Market environment 
TalkTalk’s share in the mobile sales continues to grow. This is also reflected in TalkTalk’s expanding 
customer base: In its mobile telephony segment, the company could increase the number of cus-
tomers in this fiscal year to 39,000 (2014: 32,000).

2018 will ring in the end of analog telephoning and of telephones with rotary dials. TalkTalk is al-
ready responding to this coming change and, in March 2015, stopped signing up new customers 
for analog telephony. At the same time TalkTalk has begun to migrate fixed-line customers to a new 
technology so that even after 2018, they can continue telephoning via the fixed-line network with 
TalkTalk. 

Services 
TalkTalk offers a wide range of products in all categories, from mobile (post- & prepaid) and fixed-
line to basic connection and Internet. With its very attractive international rates TalkTalk appeals not 
only to the entire Swiss market but also particularly to customers with a diverse ethnic background. 
Thanks to its own extremely efficient IT system, TalkTalk can quickly adapt pricing plans or intro-
duce new ones and thus respond optimally to changing customer needs.
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mobiletouch 

As the leading service center in Switzerland and Austria, mobiletouch offers repair services for 
mobile devices, such as mobile phones, digital cameras, and other portables. 

Market environment
Overall, the volume of repairs has declined in 2016 in both Switzerland and Austria. Despite this 
development the company thus remains a clear market leader.  

Services
Thanks to the uninterrupted repair chain within mobilezone, which covers everything from 
 accepting devices in the shop to returning them, customers can rely on very high repair quality. 
Eight mobilezone-shops offer express repair service of mobile phones and immediate iPhone 
 replacement at their own Service-Centers. The trained technicians provide personal customer sup-
port and repair of brands, such as Apple and Samsung, on site. Customers with defective iPhones 
immediately receive a replacement  device. Secure data transfer and backup complete mobile-
zone’s extensive service portfolio.  

In addition, mobiletouch has further expanded its range of services by offering repair services in 
locations outside of mobilezone. For example, in year 2015 mobiletouch began offering its service 
also at the Samsung Repair-Center in Basel as well in nine Swisscom Repair-Centers. 

The Canon Repair Center specializes in the repair of Canon cameras and of the electronic and 
optical systems of all types of cameras. Services also  include the repair of Canon printers and 
scanners. 



«Omnichannnel will strengthen the 
online channel, but what will happen 
to brick-and-mortar shops?»

With Omnichannnel we are actually 
strengthening both channels and link 
them with each other. We can then address 
new customer groups and optimize the 
shopping experience for our customers.  
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Corporate Governance

The principles and provisions of Corporate Governance are set forth in the Articles of Association 
and in the Organizational Regulations of mobilezone holding ag. The published information 
 complies with the SIX Swiss Exchange guidelines on Corporate Governance and with the applica-
ble relevant reporting requirements of the Swiss Code of Obligations. The balance sheet date is 
December 31, 2016, unless otherwise indicated.

1. Group structure and shareholders
1.1 Group structure
The mobilezone Group comprises two business areas, Trade and Service Providing. The parent 
company is mobilezone holding ag, Riedthofstrasse 124, 8105 Regensdorf, Switzerland, which is 
listed in the Domestic Segment of SIX Swiss Exchange (Valor no.: 27683769, ISIN: CH0276837694). 
As of December 31, 2016, market capitalization amounted to CHF 467 million. 

Company name Company’s place 
of business

Currency Share 
capital    

(000) 

Capital 
shares

Segment

mobilezone ag CH-Regensdorf CHF 2 850 100% Trade
mobilezone business ag CH-Urnäsch CHF 100 100% Trade
mobilezone service ag CH-Urnäsch CHF 100 100% Trade
einsAmobile GmbH1 D-Obertshausen EUR 50 100% Trade
einsAmobile Management GmbH1 D-Obertshausen EUR 25 100% Trade
Mister Mobile GmbH1 D-Obertshausen EUR 25 75% Trade
TalkTalk AG CH-Zug CHF 100 100% Service
mobiletouch ag CH-Zweidlen CHF 100 100% Service
mobiletouch austria gmbH A-Wien EUR 35 100% Service

1 Since April 2015.

1.2 Significant shareholders
According to our share register, on December 31, the following significant shareholders and share-
holder groups held more than 3 percent of capital shares and voting rights: 

Firma 2016 2015
Patinex AG, Wilen 25.00% 27.43%
Credit Suisse Funds AG, Zürich 6.02% 3.14%
Grapal Holding AG 3.11% n.a.

On July 11, 2016, Patinex AG reported the dropping out of a direct shareholder and shares amoun-
ting to 28.95 percent. On July 27, 2016, in accordance with the Stock Exchange Act (BEHG), Patinex 
AG, Wilen / BZ Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Wilen, reported an additional direct shareholder and 
shares amounting to 27.77 percent. 

In accordance with the Stock Exchange Act (BEHG), Credit Suisse Funds AG reported on May 30, 
2016, that it was holding 5.02 percent of shares. On that same day, it reported to have again drop-
ped below the threshold of 5 percent. In accordance with the Stock Exchange Act (BEHG), Credit 
Suisse Funds AG reported on June 28, 2016, that it was holding 5.01 percent of shares. 
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To our knowledge there is no shareholder’s agreement between the significant shareholders. 

1.3 Cross-shareholdings
To our knowledge there are no cross-shareholdings.

2. Capital structure
2.1 Capital
The share capital consists of 32,195,697 registered shares with a par value of CHF 0.01 each.

On April 9, 2015, the annual General Meeting decided to convert the previous bearer shares at a 
par value of CHF 0.01 each into new registered shares at the unchanged par value of CHF 0.01 
each. Since April 28, 2015, the company’s registered shares are being traded on the SIX Swiss Ex-
change. 

2.2 Special note regarding authorized and conditional capital
There is neither authorized nor conditional share capital.

2.3 Changes in capital
Changes in capital made in 2015 and 2016 are listed in the consolidated equity statement on page 49 
of this report, and the changes made in 2014 are listed on page 49 of 2014’s financial report.

2.4 Shares and participation certificates
As of December 31, 2016, the share capital consists of 32,195,697 registered shares at a par value of 
CHF 0.01 each. Of these shares none are treasury shares. Treasury shares do not have any dividend 
or voting rights. All other shares are equally entitled to dividends and voting. There are no partici-
pation certificates. 

2.5 Profit-sharing certificates
There are no profit-sharing certificates.

2.6 Limitations on transferability and nominee registrations
The transferability of the registered shares is not limited.

Nominee shareholders are registered in the share register without voting rights. There are no ag-
reements with Nominee shareholders regarding registration requirements. 

2.7 Convertible bonds and warrants/options
As of the balance sheet date, there were no convertible bonds or options issued by Group compa-
nies outstanding.
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3. Board of Directors
3.1 Members of the Board of Directors
On December 31, 2016, the Board of Directors of the mobilezone holding ag consisted of three 
non-executive members.

Name Position Nomination

Urs T. Fischer President 2009

Cyrill Schneuwly Member 2009

Andreas M. Blaser Member 2016

URS T. FISCHER
Urs T. Fischer (1954, Swiss) has been Chairman of the Board of Directors of the mobilezone Group 
since April 2009. After graduating with a diploma in engineering from the ETH Zurich, he held 
 various management positions at IBM Switzerland and Digital Equipment Corporation, Switzerland. 
He was the CEO of Sunrise Communication AG in Zurich and was CEO and member of the Board of 
Directors of Ascom Group, Bern. From 2004 to 2007, Urs T. Fischer was Managing Director of 
 Hewlett-Packard (Switzerland) GmbH in Dübendorf, and since 2009 he has been CEO of the inter-
national IT-systems company ACP in Vienna. He is on the Board of Directors of various corporations 
that are not listed on the stock exchange.

CYRILL SCHNEUWLY 
Cyrill Schneuwly (1963, Swiss) has been a member of mobilezone Group’s Board of Directors since 
April 2009. He is a business economist and certified accountant, and upon graduation he initially 
held various positions at a trust company in Zurich. Subsequently, he was accountant in charge of 
the audit and consulting department of Arthur Andersen AG in Zurich, and then he worked as 
 corporate controller at CWS International AG in Baar. Since 1998, he has been with Intershop 
 Holding AG in Zurich, first as CFO, and since 2008, as CEO. From 2013 to mid-2016 he was a mem-
ber of the Investment Committee of Corestate Capital AG, Zug.

ANDREAS M. BLASER
Andreas M. Blaser (1962, Swiss) is an entrepreneur and management consultant. After studying 
business administration and IT, he held various leadership positions in national and international IT 
companies. He was a cofounder of TVD AG, and from 1999 to 2003 he also served on its board of 
directors. As a member of corporate management and project director, he headed the project 
business of Computer Sciences Corporation (CSC) in Switzerland from 2003 to 2007. He is cofoun-
der of the management consulting company Blaser Meewes & Partner AG and has been a member 
of its board of directors since 2012. In addition, Andreas Blaser serves as president of the foundati-
on Sternwarte Uecht for astronomical research and education.



32 Corporate Governance

3.2 Other activities and vested interests
Information about other activities and vested interests of the members of the Board of Directors can 
be viewed on the website at www.mobilezone.ch/ueber-uns/governance/verwaltungsrat.

3.3 Cross-involvement
There is no cross-involvement with the boards of other companies listed on the stock exchange. 

3.4 Elections and terms of office
The Board of Directors is elected individually by the General Meeting of Shareholders for a one-
year term. Unlimited re-election is possible.

3.5 Internal organizational structure
Urs T. Fischer is chairman, Cyrill Schneuwly is vice-chairman, and together with Andreas M. Blaser 
they are members of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors meets as often as required by 
business. In the past year, eight meetings were held. In addition to the CEO, the CFO usually also 
attends these meetings and conferences. Other members of the Group management, employees, 
or third parties are brought in as needed. 

3.6 Audit Committee
The tasks of the Audit Committee and of the Compensation Committee are being carried out by 
the Board of Directors as a whole.

3.7 Definition of areas of responsibility
To the extent allowed by law, the Board of Directors has delegated managerial functions to the Group 
Management. The breakdown of tasks and competencies is established in the bylaws and rules of 
organization. They can be viewed at any time at www.mobilezone.ch/about-us/governance/down-
loads.

3.8 Information and control instruments vis-à-vis the Group Management
Each member of the Board of Directors has the right to be informed about the course of business 
by the Group Management, even outside of official meetings, and this includes the right to be in-
formed about individual transactions. The information and control tools the Board of Directors uses 
vis-à-vis the Group Management include in particular the following:

• Consolidated budget (annual)
• Quarterly reports with budget comparison
• Profit and loss forecast (beginning in the 3rd quarter)
• Flash and KPI reporting (monthly)
• Financial projections (quarterly)
• Detailed oral reports of the Group Management on the course of business (in every meeting)

3.9 Directorships outside of mobilezone Group 
A member of the Board of Directors may hold no more than fifteen additional directorships in other 
companies; no more than five of these may be in other companies listed on the stock exchange. 
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Markus Bernhard 
CEO

Andreas Fecker 
CFO

Werner Waldburger 
CPO (till 31.12.2016)

4. Group management
4.1 Members of the Group Management
On December 31, 2016, mobilezone holding ag’s management consisted of three members. 

Name Position with the company since in this position since

Markus Bernhard CEO 2007 2014

Andreas Fecker CFO 2007 2014

Werner Waldburger CPO 1999 2012

MARKUS BERNHARD
Markus Bernhard (1964, Swiss) has led mobilezone Group as its CEO since 2014. From 2007 to 2013 he 
was mobilezone Group’s CFO. Following his graduation from the University of St. Gallen (HSG  St. Gal-
len) with a degree in economics, Markus Bernhard received his diploma as a certified public account-
ant. From 1991 to 1997, he worked as an auditor at Revisuisse Price Waterhouse AG in Zurich. He was 
CFO of Cope Inc. in Rotkreuz until 2000 and subsequently was CFO of Mount10 Holding AG, also in 
Rotkreuz. Markus Bernhard is a member of the Board of Directors of Novavisions AG in Rotkreuz. 

ANDREAS FECKER 
Andreas Fecker (1972, Swiss) joined mobilezone Group’s management as CFO in 2014. From 2008 to 
2013, he was Head of Finance & Controlling of mobilezone Group. After graduating with a Swiss feder-
al certificate as a financial expert in accounting and finance, Andreas Fecker earned his Master of Ad-
vanced Studies degree in Controlling in 2013 at the Lucerne University of Applied Sciences and Arts.   

WERNER WALDBURGER
Werner Waldburger (1963, Swiss) joined mobilezone Group’s management in 1999; from October 
2012 until the end of 2016, he was the Group’s CPO. Werner Waldburger left the Group manage-
ment as of January 1, 2017, and now heads the area Business Steering Schweiz. Following his ap-
prenticeship as radio and television electrician, he graduated from the commercial college and 
passed the advanced examinations in retailing. He held various positions in sales, both in the office 
and in the field, before working as Head of Consumer Electronics Purchasing at Dipl. Ing. Fust AG 
from 1989 to 1999. In 2009 Werner Waldburger received an advanced education diploma in mar-
keting from the university in St. Gallen
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4.2 Other activities and vested interests
Information about other activities and vested interests of the members of the Board of Directors can 
be viewed on the website at www.mobilezone.ch/ueber-uns/governance/konzernleitung 

4.3 Mandates outside of mobilezone Group 
No member of the Group Management may hold more than six additional mandates in other com-
panies, of which no more than one mandate can be in other listed companies.

4.4 Management contracts
There are no management contracts regarding the transfer of managerial functions to third parties.

4.5 Changes in Group management effective January 1, 2017
The managing directors of einsAmobile Deutschland, Murat Ayhan and Akin Erdem, have been 
appointed to join the Group management effective January 1, 2017. They will be responsible inter-
nationally for the areas E-commerce and Operator Relations as well as for Purchase and Wholesa-
le. Roger Wassmer, who has been in charge of the Group’s service business, will now head the area 
Operations in Switzerland and Austria.

Werner Waldburger, formerly Chief Product Officer, left the Group management as of January 1, 
2017, and now heads the area Business Steering Schweiz.

The new Group management under CEO Markus Bernhard (52, remaining) includes CFO Andreas 
Fecker (44, remaining), Murat Ayhan (39, new), Managing Director Germany, Akin Erdem (42, new), 
Managing Director Germany as well as Roger Wassmer (43, new), as COO Switzerland and Austria.

Murat Ayhan  
Managing Director Germany

Akin Erdem  
Managing Director Germany

Roger Wassmer  
COO Switzerland & Austria
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5. Shareholders’ participation rights
5.1 Restrictions on voting rights and representation
There are no restrictions on voting rights, and the rules in the Articles of Association regarding 
participation at the General Meeting of Shareholders do not deviate from those mandated by law.

5.2 Statutory quorums
There are no statutory voting quorums that deviate from those mandated by law.

5.3 Convocation of the General Meeting of Shareholders
There are no statutory rules on convening the General Meeting of Shareholders that deviate from 
those mandated by law.

5.4 Agenda
Shareholders representing shares of at least 3 percent of the share capital may ask to have a subject 
for discussion entered on the agenda for the General Meeting. Convening the meeting and setting 
its agenda must be requested in writing, and the item for discussion, as well as the proposals and 
motions must be named in the written request. There are no deadlines.

5.5 Registration in the share register 
Voting rights can only be exercised by shareholders and beneficiaries who are registered in the 
mobilezone holding ag share register with voting rights. To be registered as a shareholder with 
voting right requires a declaration on the part of the shareholder that the mobilezone holding ag 
shares were acquired in the shareholder’s own name and on the shareholder’s own account. 

5.6 Proxy voting / electronic participation in the General Meeting
A shareholder may be represented by a third party who has been authorized in writing; the third 
party does not have to be a shareholder. Alternatively, a shareholder may choose to be represen-
ted by the Independent Proxy. Shareholders can also authorize and instruct the Independent Proxy 
electronically; the Board of Directors will specify the relevant modalities. The members of the 
Board of Directors present at the General Meeting shall decide whether to recognize or reject the 
proxy. Additional information on provisions regarding voting instructions to the Independent 
Proxy as well as on electronic participation in the General Meeting will be set forth in the invitation 
to the General Meeting. 
 

6. Changes of control and defense measures
6.1 Duty to make an offer
There is no opting-out regulation.

6.2 Clauses regarding changes of control
There are no change-of-control clauses.
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7. Auditor
7.1 Duration of the mandate and term of office of the lead auditor
Since fiscal year 2014, PricewaterhouseCoopers AG has been the auditor of mobilezone holding ag 
and all its Group companies. Prior to that year, Ernst & Young AG served for seven years as the 
company’s auditor. The auditor is chosen annually by the General Meeting. The lead auditor is 
Daniel Ketterer.

7.2 Auditing fees
The auditing fees agreed on with the auditors for the fulfillment of their mandate, including audit-
ing the consolidated accounts, amount to a total of CHF 224,000.

7.3 Additional fees
In fiscal year 2016 PricewaterhouseCoopers submitted invoices in the amount of CHF 100,000 for 
additional services beyond the scope of the auditors’ legal mandate. These fees were essentially 
incurred for tax consulting services. 

7.4 Supervisory and control instruments pertaining to the audit
At least once per year, the Board of Directors attends with the auditor reports concluding discussion 
of the Group audit. The auditor reports on the findings from the audit in a report to the Board of 
 Directors.

8. Information policy
Pursuant to the rules of Swiss GAAP FER, each year in March and August, mobilezone Group pub-
lishes an annual and a semi-annual report on business performance. All publications are made 
available in electronic form and are published on the Group’s website. Upon request, the annual 
report and the semiannual report are made available in print. Additional information on important 
changes and essential business activities is published on an ad-hoc basis. All information, including 
publication dates and a list of contact addresses, is available on the website at www.mobilezone.
ch/about-us/company/about-us under the headings “Investors” and “Media”. Anyone who wishes 
to receive mobilezone’s media information automatically can register at www.mobilezone.ch/
about-us/investors/ir-service.

For 2017, the following important dates have been set:
• Publication of the 2016 annual report  March 10, 2017
• Conference for financial analysts and media March 10, 2017
• General Meeting  April 6, 2017
• Publication of semi-annual report  August 18, 2017
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Compensation Report

1. Introductory remarks
This compensation report sets forth the compensation policy for mobilezone Group’s Board of Di-
rectors and Group management; the report has been prepared in accordance with the relevant 
legal provisions (Swiss Code of Obligations, Ordinance against Excessive Compensation of Listed 
Companies (VegüV), and the listing rules SIX Swiss Exchange) and the Articles of Association. Fur-
thermore, this report provides information on the compensation effectively paid in the reporting 
year as well as information about the shares held by members of the Board of Directors and of the 
Group management. 

mobilezone pursues a profit- and performance-based and transparent compensation policy that is 
aimed at the company’s long-term growth and prosperity. Accordingly, the members of the Group 
management are offered the option of receiving the part of their compensation that is based on 
the company’s success in the form of mobilezone holding ag shares that are subject to a blocking 
period. 

2.  Authority and determination of compensation
2.1 General
In accordance with the VegüV, the 2015 annual General Meeting approved the amended Articles of 
Association. The amended articles stipulate that each year the Board of Directors will submit to the 
General Meeting for its approval, the maximum aggregate amount of compensation for the Board 
of Directors for the following term of office. If unforeseeable events should result in extraordinary 
demands being made on the members of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors may sub-
mit different or additional proposals regarding the same or other time periods to the General 
Meeting for its approval. 

The compensation of the members of the Group management consists of a fixed compensation as 
well as a variable and performance-based compensation. In the first quarter of every fiscal year, the 
Board of Directors evaluates whether and to what extent goals were achieved in the previous fiscal 
year. On this basis, the CEO then proposes the amounts of the performance-based compensation 
as well as any compensation adjustments for the other members of the Group management; the 
CEO participates as a guest without voting rights in the Board of Directors’ discussion of these 
matters. The CEO is not present when the Board of Directors assesses the CEO’s performance and 
compensation. In the reporting year, the fixed compensation of the Group management was de-
termined by the Board of Directors under consideration of the contractual agreements. At the 2016 
annual General Meeting, the resulting maximum aggregate amount of compensation was ap-
proved by the General Meeting. 

At the 2017 annual General meeting, the Board of Directors will propose the approval of the maxi-
mum amount of fixed compensation of the Group management for fiscal year 2017, and the ap-
proval of the aggregate amount of variable compensation of the Group management for the pre-
vious fiscal year 2016. 

2.2 Board of Directors 
The members of the Board of Directors receive a fixed compensation (fee) in cash that is not de-
pendent on profit. In the reporting year, the compensation of the Board of Directors remained 
unchanged. 

2.3 Group Management 
The compensation of the members of the Group management consists of a fixed compensation in 
cash and a variable compensation. The variable compensation includes a profit-related component 
and performance-based component as well as other benefits.

Compensation Report 
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The amount of the fixed compensation is determined or reviewed annually by the Board of Direc-
tors at its discretion and with due consideration of the job profile, the employment contract, and 
the experience and skills of each member of the Group Management. 

The amount of the variable compensation is dependent on the extent to which corporate and per-
sonal goals have been achieved and on a performance-based salary component over the course of 
a one-year period. The Board of Directors determines these objectives and their relative weight. 
The amount of this compensation is determined by the Board of Directors at its discretion and with 
due consideration of the performance and achievements of each member of the Group manage-
ment. 

The members of the Group management have the option of receiving the profit-related compen-
sation, depending on whether and to what extent goals have been achieved, partly or entirely in 
mobilezone holding ag shares with a three-year blocking period. When members opt to receive 
shares, the profit-related compensation calculated will be multiplied by a factor of two. Members 
choosing this option will receive the shares after the General Meeting.

The calculation of total number of shares allotted is based on the average of the mobilezone share 
closing price on the ex dividend day and the following four trading days. If no dividend is paid, the 
average of the closing price on the day of the General meeting and the four following days it is 
applied.

In the reporting year the variable compensation was calculated based on the consolidated profit as 
a corporate goal as well as on the achievement of personal objectives and on the performance-based 
salary component. The variable compensation amounted to between 55 percent and 91 percent 
(2015: 79 percent and 127 percent) of the fixed compensation. In these calculations the achievement 
of the corporate objective was weighted at 67 to 71 percent and that of the individual performance 
goals at 29 to 33 percent. In the reporting year the profit-related objectives were in part exceeded. 
The variable compensation is always paid out after the General Meeting of the following year.

In the reporting year the compensation of Group management was reduced by 6.8 percent (2015: 
increase by 4.7 percent) due to corporate objectives having not been sufficiently exceeded. 

The lump sum allowances approved by the tax office are not included in the compensation amounts 
reported since they are reimbursement of expenses. Much as in the previous fiscal year, these al-
lowances in the reporting year totaled between CHF 12,000 and CHF 15,600 per member of the 
Group management. 

The Group management’s employment contracts are open-ended and can be terminated with a 
maximum notice period of 12 months. No agreements regarding severance payments were made. 

No severance payments were made to parting members of any governing bodies in the reporting 
year
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3. Compensations, shareholdings,  
 and loans to governing bodies

3.1 Members of the Board of Directors 
Details regarding the compensation paid to the members of the Board of Directors are as follows:

(CHF 000) Year Fee fixed Other compensation3 Total

Urs T. Fischer
2016 120 7 127

2015 120 7 127

Cyrill Schneuwly
2016 75 5 80

2015 75 5 80

Andreas M. Blaser1
2016 75 5 80

2015 n.a. n.a. n.a.

Dr. Andreas M.  
Schönenberger2

2016 n.a. n.a. n.a.

2015 75 5 80

Total
2016 270 17 287

2015 270 17 287

1 Andreas M. Blaser was elected to the Board of Directors at the General Meeting on April 7, 2016, to replace  
Dr. Andreas M. Schönenberger, who had left the company.

2 Because Dr. Andreas Schönenberger was appointed CEO of Salt effective March 2016, he did not stand for  
re-election to the Board of Directors at the mobilezone holding ag annual General Meeting on April 7, 2016. 

3 The item “Other compensation” includes employer contributions to the social security system. 

In the reporting year, no loans or credits were granted to members of the Group Management. 
Moreover, there are no outstanding loan or credit balances. 

3.2 Former members of the Board of Directors
In the reporting year, no compensation was paid and no loans or credits were granted to former 
members of the Board of Directors. There are also no outstanding loan or credit balances. 

3.3 Shareholdings of the Board of Directors
As of December 31, the members of the Board of Directors held the following number of shares:

Name Position              Number of shares
2016 2015

Urs T. Fischer Chairman of the Board of Directors 1 000 1 000
Cyrill Schneuwly Member of the Board of Directors 2 000 2 000
Andreas M. Blaser1 Member of the Board of Directors 0 n.a.
Dr. Andreas M. Schönenberger2 Member of the Board of Directors n.a. 500
1  Andreas M. Blaser was elected to the Board of Directors at the General Meeting on April 7, 2016, to replace  
Dr. Andreas M. Schönenberger, who had left the company. 

2  Because Dr. Andreas Schönenberger was appointed CEO of Salt effective March 2016, he did not stand for  
re-election to the Board of Directors at the mobilezone holding ag annual General Meeting on April 7, 2016. 

Compensation Report 
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3.4 Members of the Group Management 

The details regarding the compensation of the members of the Group Management are as follows:

(CHF 000) Year Salary  
fixed

Salary  
profit-

related

Performance-
related 

compensation

Other 
benefits1

Total

Markus Bernhard
2016 400 245 120 151 916

2015 360 376 80 131 947

Other members of the  
Group Management

2016 474 198 83 169 924

2015 462 327 86 152 1 027

Total
2016 874 443 203 320 1 840

2015 822 703 166 283 1 974

1  The item other Compensation includes employer contributions to the pension fund, social security and personnel insurance as 
well as nonmonetary benefits. 

In the reporting year, no loans or credits were granted to members of the Group Management. 
Moreover, there are no outstanding loan or credit balances. 

3.5 Former members of the Group Management
In the reporting year, no compensation was paid and no loans or credits were granted to former 
members of the Group Management. Moreover, there are no outstanding loan or credit balances. 

3.6 Closely linked third parties
In the reporting year, no compensation was paid and no loans or credits were granted to persons 
who are closely linked to current or former members of the Board of Directors and the Group 
Management. Moreover, there are no outstanding loan or credit balances. Further information 
about compensation to related parties can be found on page 68 in Note 23 to the consolidated 
 financial statements.

3.7 Shares held by the Group Management 
As of December 31, the members of the Group Management held the following numbers of shares:

Name Position
                 Number of shares

2016 2015

Markus Bernhard Chief Executive Officer 76 182 70 000

Andreas Fecker Chief Financial Officer 16 530 3 200

Werner Waldburger Chief Product Officer 7 000 0
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mobilezone has achieved record sales and again  
increased its consolidated profit. In the past fiscal year 
mobilezone Group achieved a consolidated profit  
of CHF 36.1 million (2015: CHF 30.8 million). Sales 
rose to CHF 1,088 million (2015: CHF 859 million).  
Operating profit (EBIT) grew by 20 percent to 
CHF 48.5 million (2015: CHF 40.4 million). In the  
segment Trade EBIT grew by CHF 12.8 million. In the 
Segment Service Providing the operative result rose  
to CHF 8.1 million (2015: CHF 7.6 million) despite a  
6 percent  overall decrease in the order volume in the  
repair business. Earnings per share amount to 
CHF 1.12 (2015: CHF 0.96).

Financial Report
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January 1 to December 31  (CHF 000) Notes 2016 2015

Net sales 1 1 087 885 859 020

Cost of goods and materials –943 919 –725 412
Gross profit 143 966 133 608

Other operating income 115 387
Personnel costs 2 –59 882 –60 560
Other operating costs 3 –29 944 –26 047
Operating profit before depreciation (EBITDA) 54 255 47 388

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 7 –4 420 –4 211
Amortization of intangible assets 8 –1 364 –2 743
Operating profit (EBIT) 48 471 40 434

Financial income 4 163 407
Financial expense 5 –1 787 –1 381
Konzernergebnis vor Steuern (EBT) 46 847 39 460

Income tax expense 6 –10 700 –8 639
Net profit 36 147 30 821

CHF CHF
Earnings per share 15 1.12 0.96
Earnings per share – diluted 15 1.12 0.96

The attached explanatory Notes are an integral part of mobilezone’s consolidated financial statements. 

Consolidated income statement 

Financial Report • mobilezone Group financial statements
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As of December 31 (CHF 000) Notes 2016 2015

Assets
Property, plant & equipment 7 14 279 10 540
Intangible assets 8 1 169 1 200
Other accounts receivable 10 472 461
Deferred tax assets 6 255 124
Fixed assets 16 175 12 325

Inventories 11 49 664 46 120
Trade accounts receivable 12 71 594 54 872
Other accounts receivable 13 5 061 5 383
Accruals 14 23 360 29 386
Cash & cash equivalents 27 033 14 282
Current assets 176 712 150 043

Total assets 192 887 162 368

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Share capital 15 322 322
Treasury shares 0 0
Capital reserves 8 874 8 813
Retained earnings –12 490 –21 277
Shareholders’ equity –3 294 –12 142

Bank loan 18 36 640 49 800
Other liabilities 17 7 087 14 239
Accrued liabilities 731 717
Deferred income tax liabilities 6 2 234 2 359
Long-term liabilities 46 692 67 115

Trade accounts payable 34 502 28 464
Current income tax liabilities 21 563 16 038
Other liabilities 17 22 616 21 395
Bank loan 18 56 545 29 750
Deferral 16 14 263 11 748
Current liabilities 149 489 107 395

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 192 887 162 368

The attached explanatory Notes are an integral part of mobilezone’s consolidated financial statements. 

Consolidated balance sheet
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January 1 to December 31  (CHF 000) Notes 2016 2015

Net profit before income taxes 46 847 39 460
Adjustments to reconcile profit  
before tax to net cash flow:
Non-cash transactions
 Interest income / expense 1 624 974
 Depreciation and amortization 7, 8 5 784 6 954
 Changes of adjustments, net 287 376
 Profit from disposals of fixed assets –67 –18

Working capital adjustments
 Trade accounts receivable –17 734 –3 432
 Other accounts receivable and accruals 6 387 –10 528
 Inventories –3 427 –8 675
 Trade accounts payable 6 101 –3 829
 Other accounts payable and deferrals –72 2 253
Income taxes paid –5 290 –3 515
Net cash from operating activities 40 440 20 020

Acquisitions of
 Property, plant & equipment 7 –8 476 –5 378
 Intangible assets 8 –1 333 –1 082
 Securities in fixed assets –13 –6
 Acquisition of subsidiaries less cash & cash equivalents 9 –10 789 –39 779
Proceeds from disposals of
 Property, plant & equipment 377 331
Dividends received 21 2
Interest received 142 406

Net cash from investment activity –20 071 –45 506

Opening of bank loan 28 012 62 000
Amortization bank loan –14 200 –13 000
Interest paid –1 787 –1 381
Purchase of treasury shares –1 573 –12 084
Sale of treasury shares 1 634 10 993
Dividends paid –19 293 –19 317
Net cash from financing activity –7 207 27 211

Effect of currency translation –411 –451
Net increase/decrease in cash & cash equivalents 12 751 1 274
Cash & cash equivalents at January 1 14 282 13 008
Cash & cash equivalents at December 31 27 033 14 282

The attached explanatory Notes are an integral part of mobilezone’s consolidated financial statements. .

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Financial Report • mobilezone Group financial statements
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Movement of shareholders’ equity
(CHF 000)

Share
capital

Treasury
shares

Capital
reserve

Retained
earnings Total

01.01.2015 358 –35 839 9  904 57 687 32 110
Net profit 30 821 30 821
Share buyback program –36 35 839 –35 803 0
Purchase of treasury shares –12 084 –12 084
Sale of treasury shares 10 993 10 993
Dividends paid –19 317 –19 317
Profit of treasury shares 1 091 –1 091 0
Acquisitions –54 625 –54 625
Foreign currency differences –40 –40
31.12.2015 322 0 8 813 –21 277 –12 142
Net profit 36 147 36 147
Purchase of treasury shares –1 573 –1 573
Sale of treasury shares 1 634 1 634
Dividends paid –19 293 –19 293
Profit of treasury shares -61 61 0
Acquisitions –7 784 –7 784
Foreign currency differences –283 –283
31.12.2016 322 0 8 874 –12 490 –3 294

The attached explanatory Notes are an integral part of mobilezone’s consolidated financial statements..

As of December 31, 2016, the line item "retained earnings" includes legally required reserves in the 
amount of CHF 1,692,000  (2015: CHF 1,697,000); it is required that they not be  distributed. These 
reserves were established based on the legal requirements of the Swiss Code of Obligations. 

As of December 31, 2016, mobilezone holding ag holds no (2015: none) treasury shares. In June 
2015 the 3,577,299 shares obtained from the share buyback program of April 2014 were destroyed 
for the purpose of capital reduction in accordance with the resolution of the annual General Meet-
ing of April 9, 2015

Additional information regarding the share capital is provided in Note 15, page 65.

Consolidated statement of
changes in shareholders’ equity
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Income statement (CHF 000) Total mobilezone Group             Trade     Service Providing Unallocated/Elimination
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Net sales with third parties 1 087 885 859 020 1 012 421 785 461 75 464 73 558 0 1
Net sales with other segments 0 0 2 594 1 707 4 307 4 943 –6 901 –6 650
Net sales 1 087 885 859 020 1 015 015 787 168 79 771 78 501 –6 901 –6 649

Cost of goods and materials –943 919 –725 412 –900 098 –686 338 –50 815 –46 692 6 994 7 618
Gross profit 143 966 133 608 114 917 100 830 28 956 31 809 93 969

Other operating income 115 387 622 670 121 266 –628 –549
Personnel costs –59 882 –60 560 –42 989 –41 893 –14 826 –16 316 –2 067 –2 351
Other operating costs –29 944 –26 047 –28 281 –28 417 –4 032 –4 655 2 369 7 025

Operating profit before depreciation (EBITDA) 54 255 47 388 44 269 31 190 10 219 11 104 –233 5 094

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment –4 420 –4 211 –3 533 –3 322 –854 –831 –33 –58
Amortization of intangible assets –1 364 –2 743 –120 –113 –1 244 –2 630 0 0
Operating profit (EBIT) 48 471 40 434 40 616 27 755 8 121 7 643 –266 5 036

Statement of financial position (CHF 000)

Fixed assets 16 175 12 325 12 841 8 668 3 294 3 470 40 187
Current assets 176 712 150 043 167 501 136 723 34 952 33 134 –25 741 –19 814
Total assets 192 887 162 368 180 342 145 391 38 246 36 604 –25 701 –19 627

Liabilities 196 181 174 510 224 497 200 448 13 431 13 802 –41 747 –39 740

Investments in property, plant & equipment, and intangible assets 9 809 6 460 7 742 4 504 1 998 1 826 69 130

The management of mobilezone Group is the main decision-maker and determines the business 
activities. The mobilezone Group has two reportable segments which correspond to the manage-
ment structure of the Group. The Trade segment consists of mobilezone ag, mobilezone business 
ag, mobilezone service ag, einsAmobile GmbH, and einsAmobile Management GmbH. The Ser-
vice Providing segment consists of TalkTalk AG, mobiletouch ag, and mobiletouch austria gmbH.

The mobilezone Group monitors performance on the basis of the segment operating profit before 
interests and taxes (EBIT). The total assets of each segment comprise all assets of the segment. In-
ternal reporting of the mobilezone Group is based on the Swiss GAAP FER.

The Trade segment's operations are limited to Switzerland and Germany. In addition to operating 
in Switzerland, the Service Providing segment has also been active in Austria.

The "Unallocated/Eliminations" item comprises transactions between the segments and the hold-
ing company as well as the income of the holding company. Within the assets, loans between 
Group companies are eliminated.

Segment information

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

Financial Report • mobilezone Group financial statements
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Income statement (CHF 000) Total mobilezone Group             Trade     Service Providing Unallocated/Elimination
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Net sales with third parties 1 087 885 859 020 1 012 421 785 461 75 464 73 558 0 1
Net sales with other segments 0 0 2 594 1 707 4 307 4 943 –6 901 –6 650
Net sales 1 087 885 859 020 1 015 015 787 168 79 771 78 501 –6 901 –6 649

Cost of goods and materials –943 919 –725 412 –900 098 –686 338 –50 815 –46 692 6 994 7 618
Gross profit 143 966 133 608 114 917 100 830 28 956 31 809 93 969

Other operating income 115 387 622 670 121 266 –628 –549
Personnel costs –59 882 –60 560 –42 989 –41 893 –14 826 –16 316 –2 067 –2 351
Other operating costs –29 944 –26 047 –28 281 –28 417 –4 032 –4 655 2 369 7 025

Operating profit before depreciation (EBITDA) 54 255 47 388 44 269 31 190 10 219 11 104 –233 5 094

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment –4 420 –4 211 –3 533 –3 322 –854 –831 –33 –58
Amortization of intangible assets –1 364 –2 743 –120 –113 –1 244 –2 630 0 0
Operating profit (EBIT) 48 471 40 434 40 616 27 755 8 121 7 643 –266 5 036

Statement of financial position (CHF 000)

Fixed assets 16 175 12 325 12 841 8 668 3 294 3 470 40 187
Current assets 176 712 150 043 167 501 136 723 34 952 33 134 –25 741 –19 814
Total assets 192 887 162 368 180 342 145 391 38 246 36 604 –25 701 –19 627

Liabilities 196 181 174 510 224 497 200 448 13 431 13 802 –41 747 –39 740

Investments in property, plant & equipment, and intangible assets 9 809 6 460 7 742 4 504 1 998 1 826 69 130

Notes to the financial statements
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Principles of Group accounting

Corporate information
The mobilezone Group (hereinafter: mobilezone) conducts business in the area of mobile and 
fixed-line telephony. Its core activity is in the Trade segment with mobilezone ag, which was esta-
blished in May 1999 and has 129 shops in all larger Swiss cities and towns, and mobilezone 
 business ag, which as an independent service provider focuses on business clients, and the einsA-
mobile in Germany with its 55 franchising shops and online web portals, a company that is also 
active in the wholesale business and supplies specialist stores. The business model of mobilezone 
is based on agreements with the mobile phone service providers; they pay mobilezone for finding 
new customers and for renewing contracts with existing customers. These commissions allow mo-
bilezone to provide its customers with mobile telephones at very low prices or even at no charge. 

The Service Providing segment consists of the companies mobiletouch ag and mobiletouch austria 
gmbH and, TalkTalk AG. As service provider without networks of its own, TalkTalk offers customers 
services and products in the area of mobile, fixed-line telephony, basic access and Internet. For the 
most part, the offers are based on the network capacities of the company Sunrise Communications 
AG. The mobiletouch companies repair mobile phones and other electronic devices and also offer 
related logistics services. 

The parent company of the mobilezone Group is mobilezone holding ag, Riedthofstrasse 124, 8105 
Regensdorf,Switzerland. The company is listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange: stock ticker symbol 
MOZN /  Swiss Security Number 276 837 69. 

Financial Report • mobilezone Group financial statements
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1. Important principles of 
 Group accounting

1.1 Principles of preparation of the financial statements
The 2016 consolidated financial statements of mobilezone Group have been prepared in accord-
ance with all existing guidelines of Swiss GAAP FER (accounting and reporting regulations). The 
consolidated financial statements of mobilezone provide a true and fair picture of its asset, finan-
cial, and earnings situation (true and fair view) in accordance with the principles of Swiss GAAP FER, 
and comply with Swiss law. The revisions regarding revenue recognition in the Swiss GAAP FER 
framework and in Swiss GAAP FER 3 and 6 — all in effect since January 1, 2016 — are being applied. 
The adjusted principles for revenue recognition had no influence on the Group’s reporting in the 
statement of financial position and the income statement. The consolidated accounts have been 
prepared on the basis of the historical cost principle, except for derivative financial instruments and 
securities, which are listed at their fair market value. The Group’s consolidated accounts are based 
on the Group companies’ separate financial statements that have been prepared in accordance 
with uniform guidelines. The uniform balance sheet date is December 31. The reporting currency is 
the Swiss franc (CHF).

1.2 Definition of non Swiss GAAP FER  key figures 
The gross profit subtotal includes net sales after deduction of the cost of goods and changes in 
inventories. The EBITDA subtotal includes gross profit and other operating income after deduction 
of personnel costs, operative leasing, and other operating expenses. Since the gross profit and 
EBITDA subtotals are important control factors for mobilezone, they are reported separately in the 
income statement.

Notes to the financial statements
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1.3 Principles of consolidation 

Scope of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of mobilezone include the financial statements of  
mobilezone holding ag and all the subsidiaries it controls directly or indirectly by majority of 
votes or other means. mobilezone holding ag currently holds shares in the following companies:

Company Corporate  
headquarters

Cur–
rency 

Equity 
capital 

(CHF 000)

Shares  
in  the  

company

Segment Consoli-
dation 

mobilezone ag CH-Regensdorf CHF 2 850 100% Trade V1

mobilezone business ag CH-Urnäsch CHF 100 100% Trade V1

mobilezone service ag4 CH-Urnäsch CHF 100 100% Trade V1

einsAmobile GmbH3 D-Obertshausen EUR 50 100% Trade V1

einsAmobile Management GmbH3 D-Obertshausen EUR 25 100% Trade V1

Mister Mobile GmbH3 D-Obertshausen EUR 25 75% Trade A2

TalkTalk AG CH-Zug CHF 100 100% Service V1

mobiletouch ag CH-Zweidlen CHF 100 100% Service V1

mobiletouch austria gmbH A-Wien EUR 35 100% Service V1

1 V: full consolidation 
2 A: acquisition cost 
3 since April 2015 
4 in November 2015 mobilezone trade ag was renamed mobilezone service ag.

Assets and liabilities, as well as expenses and income of the fully consolidated companies are in-
corporated at 100 percent. Upon consolidation, all accounts payable to, accounts receivable from, 
and transactions between the companies included in the consolidation are offset and eliminated. 
Interim gains from such transactions are eliminated. 

The acquisition cost of subsidiaries is offset at the time of acquisition against the fair market value 
of the net assets acquired, liabilities, and contingent liabilities based on their new valuation, and 
the resulting goodwill is offset at the time of acquisition against shareholders’ equity (profit re-
serves). 

Upon consolidation, all accounts payable to, accounts receivable from as well as transactions and 
resulting paper profits between the companies included in the consolidation are eliminated. 

Estimates and discretionary decisions
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with FER requires evaluations, assumptions, 
and estimates that influence the items in the financial statements as of the balance sheet date. 
These evaluations, assumptions, and estimates are based on empirical values and other factors that 
are considered adequate under the given conditions. The actual results may deviate from these 
estimates. The estimates and the assumptions based on them are subject to continuous revision. 
Changes to estimates that affect the annual financial statements are included in the reporting peri-
od in which the estimate was revised as well as in future reporting periods if they are affected by 
the revised estimates.

Segment information
The segment reporting format reflects the structure of the mobilezone Group. The assets as well as 
the liabilities include all balance sheet items that can be directly allocated to a segment.

The Trade segment consists of the companies mobilezone ag, mobilezone business ag, mobile-
zone service ag, einsAmobile GmbH and einsAmobile Management GmbH. The Service Providing 
segment consists of the companies TalkTalk ag, mobiletouch ag, and mobiletouch austria gmbH. 

Financial Report • mobilezone Group financial statements
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1.4 Principles of recognition and valuation

Principles of recognition and valuation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in Swiss francs. The functional currency of all 
Group companies is the Swiss franc or the euro. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate effective on the balance sheet date. Gains 
or losses arising from transactions and foreign currency translations of balance sheet items are in-
cluded in the current year’s income statement. Effective December 31, 2016, the euro exchange rate 
of 1.0866 (2015: 1.0916) was used for the statement of financial position, and the average exchange 
rate of 1.1012 (2015: 1.0799) was applied to the income statement. 

Securities
Generally, securities are initially valued at historical cost plus transaction costs. Subsequently, secu-
rities are adjusted to market value and are recognized in the income statement under current assets. 

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not listed on any stock exchange. They arise when mobilezone directly makes money, goods, 
or services available to a debtor and does not intend to trade with the receivable. Receivables from 
sales of services and products are valued at their nominal value, less the necessary value adjust-
ments for receivables at risk. In addition to individual value adjustments for specific receivables 
known to be at risk, lump sum value adjustments are made for items that are overdue. The changes 
in the value adjustment are recognized in the income statement. The nominal value corresponds 
roughly to the market value. With the exception of values maturing more than 12 months after the 
balance sheet date, they are included in the current assets. The latter are classified as fixed assets.

Property, plant, and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at historical cost or manufacturing cost less accumulated 
depreciation. Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis on the basis of 
the following estimated useful lives of items of property, plant, and equipment:

• Office equipment and furniture, including EDP, 2 to 10 years
• Shop equipment 5 to 8 years

Intangible assets
Acquired rights, such as contracts with clients, lessors and suppliers, and similar rights that gener-
ate financial earnings are capitalized and amortized on straight-line basis over the contractual or 
estimated useful life of usually 5 years. For the Service Providing business segment, customer ac-
quisition costs for fixed-line and Internet customers is capitalized and depreciated on straight-line 
basis over a maximum term of 24 months.

Impairment of assets
Assets are tested annually for impairment on the balance sheet date when, due to events and indi-
cations, an overvaluation of the book values appears possible. Losses due to impairment are rec-
ognized in the income statement when an asset’s book value is higher than its recoverable value. 
The recoverable value is defined as the higher of the net market value and utility value. If the factors 
on which the determination of the recoverable value was based have improved  considerably, a 
value impairment stated in a previous reporting period will be reversed in the income statement, 
either in part or in full, and included in the income statement.

Notes to the financial statements
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Goodwill
Goodwill refers to the difference between purchase price and the actual value of the acquired net 
asset; it arises in the acquisition of subsidiaries. Goodwill is offset against shareholders’ equity 
(profit reserve) at the time of acquisition. When a subsidiary is sold, acquired goodwill that had at 
an earlier time been offset against shareholders’ equity is taken into account at historical cost to 
determine the profit or loss affecting net income. The effect of a theoretical capitalization of good-
will with scheduled amortization, as well as possible value adjustments to the statement of financial 
position, and the income statement over a useful life of 5 years is shown in the Notes. 
 
Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The cost of inventories is 
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Goods with longer storage periods are subject 
to appropriate value adjustments. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business, less selling expenses. The price of a mobile phone is determined based on 
whether the product is sold on a stand-alone basis or in conjunction with a provider subscription. Net 
realizable value therefore takes into account both components. In addition, price protection arrange-
ments with suppliers are also taken into account in determining the need for any value adjustments 
on inventories. Discount deductions are treated as reductions in the cost of goods.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, current credit bank balances, and current depos-
its with original maturity of less than 3 months. Cash and cash equivalents are treated as affecting 
net income and are stated at fair market value.

Treasury shares
If treasury shares are bought back, the share-based payments, including directly related costs, are 
stated as deductions in the shareholders’ equity. Any profits and losses from transactions with 
treasury shares are offset against shareholders’ equity.

Dividends
Dividends are recognized as a liability in the reporting period in which their distribution is decided.

Current financial liabilities
Current financial liabilities include trade and other current accounts payable and are stated at de-
preciated historical cost.

Provisions for liabilities and contingencies
Provisions are set aside for current or future legal or de-facto obligations when, on the balance sheet 
date, as a result of past events, reasonable estimates regarding the future transfer of economic values 
are possible and when such a transfer is likely. The provisions are determined based on the best 
possible estimate of the expected expenditures. 

Contingent liabilities are stated in the Notes if a future obligation is possible or if a present obliga-
tion exists, but an outflow of funds is not probable or the amount cannot be reliably determined.

Financial Report • mobilezone Group financial statements
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Operative leasing and financial leasing 
Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the income statement on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease. Revenue-based and other contingent leases are accrued on an 
estimated basis. Per December 31, 2016 and as of December 31, 2015, there were no financial leas-
ing contracts.

Pension benefits
The mobilezone Group has defined-contribution pension plans. Each of the Swiss subsidiaries is 
affiliated with a collective foundation, a multi-employer plan, with full value insurance. The mobile-
zone Group is not obligated to cover a possible plan deficit. These pension benefit plans are fi-
nanced with contributions from employees and employer. The foreign pension benefit plans are of 
secondary importance.

Revenues
Net sales include all revenues from the sale of goods and services, less reductions in earnings, re-
bates, discounts, and VAT. Revenues from the sale of goods are included in the income statement 
when the significant risks and rights of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. One-time 
commissions from providers are recognized upon conclusion of the contract. Recurring "airtime" 
profit-sharing commissions from providers are based on the subscribers’ monthly payments of 
mobile telephone bills to the providers. These amounts are recorded in the income statement 
based on the providers’ invoices on an accrual basis. Service revenues are recognized in the period 
in which the services were rendered.

Income tax
Current income taxes are calculated based on the taxable income of the year and are recorded in 
the income statement. Deferred income taxes are calculated using the balance sheet liability meth-
od on any temporary differences arising from divergences between the book value of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the value used for tax purposes. Deferred tax is cal-
culated using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted on the balance sheet date and will be offset 
in future tax periods. Deferred tax loss carryforwards and deferred income tax credits are activated 
only to the extent that it is probable that they will be realized in the future.

Notes to the financial statements
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2. Type and scope of financial risks
2.1 Financial risk management
The financial instruments of mobilezone Group predominantly include cash and cash equivalents
to provide sufficient funds for the business activities of the Group companies. The Group has
various other financial instruments, such as trade accounts payable and receivable resulting
directly from business activities, at its disposal. The main risks arising from these financial
instruments include liquidity risk and risk of loss of receivables. In terms of other financial assets,
such as securities and other receivables, the maximum financial risk in the event of a failure of
the counterparty corresponds to the book value of these instruments.

2.2 Foreign currency risk
For the most part, sales in the Trade segment are denominated in the companies’ local currencies 
(Swiss franc and euro). The currency volatilities of the euro do not significantly impact the operating 
profits of mobilezone. Given the short-term nature of payments in euro (7–14 days) and the high 
inventory turnover, as well as mobilezone’s currency congruent wholesale purchasing and selling 
of goods, the company generally does not hedge against currency risks on purchases. Only a few 
forward exchange transactions with short maturity took place in the reporting year. Any contracts 
open at the balance sheet date are valued at fair market value with any changes in fair market value 
fully recognised in the income statement. No forward exchange transactions were open as of De-
cember 31, 2016, or December 31, 2015.

2.3 Credit risk / Risk of loss of receivables
The Group is exposed to credit risks arising from its ordinary business activity. mobilezone’s credit 
risk arises primarily from trade accounts receivable and bank deposits. A considerable portion of 
the sales in the Trade segment consists of cash transactions or is covered by insurance. Therefore, 
this business activity results in relatively few outstanding accounts receivable compared to total 
sales. The company meets the risk of outstanding accounts receivable by negotiating short pay-
ment terms. To counteract the significantly higher risk of loss of receivables in the Service Providing 
segment, mobilezone Group employs predetermined hedging strategies, such as credit reports. 
Further minimization of risk is achieved by limiting and controlling the volume of outstanding re-
ceivables. Current bank credit balances and deposits are held at financial institutions. The risk of 
default is minimized by maintaining business relationships with several financial institutions and by 
continuously monitoring the credit risk.

2.4 Interest rate risk
Changes in interest rates can have negative effects on the Group’s asset and income situation and 
can lead to changes in interest income and interest expenses. The risks regarding interest changes 
for the financial liabilities are limited, however, since the interest rates for most of the financial lia-
bilities are fixed rates. 

2.5 Liquidity risk
Currently, mobilezone Group bears no liquidity risk as its financial position features a sufficient-
ly large amount of cash and cash equivalents, and its credit lines of CHF 108 million (2015:  
CHF 91 million) are sufficient to cover peak demands on net working capital. As of December 31, 
2016, CHF 11.6 million (2015: CHF 8.1 million) of the credit line remain unused.

2.6 Investment control
The primary objective of mobilezone Group’s investment control is to ensure that the Group 
 maintains a high credit rating and an advantageous proportion of shareholders’ equity in order to 
 support its business activities. Capital includes the shareholder’s equity items capital stock, treasury 
shares, capital reserves, and retained earnings. The Group may adjust dividend distributions to 
shareholders, issue new shares, buyback shares, or borrow capital for adjusting or maintaining its 
capital structure. No such changes were made to the objectives and guidelines as of December 31, 
2016, or December 31, 2015.n.

Financial Report • mobilezone Group financial statements
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Net sales (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Sales mobile communication products 748 856 541 449
One-time commissions and recurring "airtime"  
profit sharing of providers

262 895 243 278

Revenue from fixed-net subscriptions, repairs, services 76 134 74 293
Total net sales 1 087 885 859 020

Personnel costs (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Wages and salaries 51 858 52 500
Social security costs 5 562 5 813
Pension costs 1 448 1 421
Other personnel costs 1 014 826
Total personnel costs 59 882 60 560

Number of full-time employees as of December 31 878 918

Other operating costs (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Operating lease costs 11 096 11 241
Advertising 10 817 7 887
Repair & maintenance, general & administrative costs 15 352 13 113
less: contributions received from third parties –7 321 –6 194
Total other operating costs 29 944 26 047

Financial income (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Income from interest 141 386
Other financial income 22 21
Total Financial income 163 407

Financial expense (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Interest expense 1 787 1 381
Total Financial expense 1 787 1 381
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Income tax expense (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Income tax expense 10 958 15 269
Deferred income taxes –258 –6 630
Total income tax 10 700 8 639

Current income taxes are based solely on the profit in the reporting year. Deferred income taxes are 
based on changes in temporary differences and the recognition of future tax loss carryforwards. 

Income tax reconciliation (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Profit before taxes 46 847 39 460
Average applicable tax rate 23,92% 20,66%
Expected tax expense 11 206 8 153
Impact on tax expense from tax rate changes –506 188
Nondeductible expenses 0 298
Effective income tax expense 10 700 8 639

The average tax rate is the weighted average of the tax rates of the individual Group companies and 
may therefore vary annually.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Inventories 1 460 1 554
Trade accounts receivable 653 613
Accrued liabilities 121 192
Total latente Steuerpassiven 2 234 2 359

Activated tax loss carryforwards 0 124
Accrued liabilities 255 0
Total deferred tax assets 255 124

Deferred tax liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are applicable to the respective compa-
nies. These range from 13 to 29 percent. As in the previous year, no income tax was recognized 
directly in the shareholders’ equity.

The activated tax loss carryforwards are recognized since it is probable that they will be realized 
because of future taxable earnings. These loss carryforwards do not expire. 

6
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7 Property, plant & equipment (CHF 000)
Shop  

equipment
Other  

property, plant 
& equipment

Total

Acquisition costs
As of December 31, 2014 30 178 17 459 47 637
 Additions 1 972 3 406 5 378
 Change in scope of consolidation 46 506 552
 Disposals –565 –1 073 –1 638
 Foreign exchange impact 2 –203 –201
As of December 31, 2015 31 633 20 095 51 728
 Additions 3 514 4 962 8 476
 Change in scope of consolidation 0 0 0
 Disposals 0 –1 453 –1 453
 Foreign exchange impact 0 –11 –11
As of December 31, 2016 35 147 23 593 58 740

Accumulated depreciation
As of December 31, 2014 26 499 11 988 38 487
 Additions 1 675 2 536 4 211
 Change in scope of consolidation 0 0 0
 Disposals –518 –874 –1 392
 Foreign exchange impact 0 –118 –118
As of December 31, 2015 27 656 13 532 41 188
 Additions 1 625 2 795 4 420
 Change in scope of consolidation 0 0 0
 Disposals 0 –1 144 –1 144
 Foreign exchange impact 0 –3 –3
As of December 31, 2016 29 281 15 180 44 461

Book value
As of December 31, 2015 3 977 6 563 10 540
As of December 31, 2016 5 866 8 413 14 279

Notes to the consolidated statement  
of financial position

Notes to the financial statements
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Intangible assets (CHF 000)
Customer

acquisition costs
Acquired shop

location Total

Acquisition costs
As of December 31, 2014 31 644 5 768 37 412
 Additions 908 174 1 082
 Change in scope of consolidation 0 0 0
 Disposals –14 929 –70 –14 999
 Foreign exchange impact –8 0 –8
As of December 31, 2015 17 615 5 872 23 487
 Additions 1 163 170 1 333
 Change in scope of consolidation 0 0 0
 Disposals 0 0 0
 Foreign exchange impact 0 0 0
As of December 31, 2016 18 778 6 042 24 820

Accumulated depreciation
As of December 31, 2014 29 087 5 412 34 499
 Additions 2 630 113 2 743
 Change in scope of consolidation 0 0 0
 Disposals –14 929 –17 –14 946
 Foreign exchange impact –9 0 –9
As of December 31, 2015 16 779 5 508 22 287
 Additions 1 244 120 1 364
 Change in scope of consolidation 0 0 0
 Disposals 0 0 0
 Foreign exchange impact 0 0 0
As of December 31, 2016 18 023 5 628 23 651

Book value
As of December 31, 2015 836 364 1 200
As of December 31, 2016 755 414 1 169

8
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Other assets  (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Other assets 472 461
Total other assets 472 461

The other assets include deposits and shares in other companies, which are recognised at acqui-
sition value minus any value adjustments. 

Acquisitions
At the end of March 2015, the companies einsAmobile GmbH and einsAmobile Management 
GmbH, Obertshausen, Germany, were acquired. On the basis of Swiss GAAP FER, the acquisition 
balance sheet is presented as follows: 

(CHF 000)
Cash & cash equivalents 8 973
Trade accounts receivable 20 875
Other accounts receivable 5 158
Inventories 10 823
Accruals 316
Property, plant & equipment 552
Other assets 109
Total assets 46 806
Bank loans 6 335
Trade accounts payable 11 093
Other accounts payable 9 124
Deferrals 1 757
Total liabilities 28 309

Net assets 18 497

Purchase price 73 122
Earn-Out liability –24 370
Acquired cash & cash equivalents –8 973
Net outflow of funds 39 779

Development of purchasing price/Goodwill
Purchasing price March 27, 2015 69 847
Earn-Out increase 2015 3 275
Purchasing price December 31, 2015 73 122
Earn-Out increase 2016 7 784
Purchasing price December 31, 2016 80 906
Net assets –18 497
Goodwill December 31, 2016 62 409

9
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11 Inventories (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Inventories, gross 50 596 47 344
less value adjustments –932 –1 224
Total inventories 49 664 46 120

Notes to the financial statements
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Trade accounts receivable (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Accounts receivable, gross 73 422 56 069
Value adjustments –1 828 –1 197
Total trade accounts receivable 71 594 54 872

Trade accounts receivable do not bear interest and are usually payable within 30 days.

Value adjustments (CHF 000) 2016 2015
As of January 1 1 197 954
Additions from acquisitions 0 496
Allocations 1 539 1 197
Usage –506 –679
Dissolutions –391 –773
Currency differences –11 2
As of December 31 1 828 1 197

Other accounts receivable (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Other accounts receivable 2 653 3 692
Other accounts receivable nonconsolidated holdings 2 408 1 691
Total other accounts receivable 5 061 5 383

Accruals (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Accruals from unbilled receivables 22 620 24 102
Other accruals 740 5 284
Total accruals 23 360 29 386

12
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Share capital (shares à nom. CHF 0.01) Number

Number of shares issued at January 1, 2015 35 772 996
Share buyback program –3 577 299
Number of shares outstanding at December 31, 2015 32 195 697

Number of shares issued at January 1, 2016 32 195 697

Number of shares outstanding at December 31, 2016 32 195 697

In June 2015, the 3,577,299 shares obtained from the share buyback program of April 2014 were 
destroyed for the purpose of capital reduction in accordance with the resolution of the annual Ge-
neral Meeting of April 9, 2015.

Further details regarding treasury shares are included in Note 14 to the financial statements of mo-
bilezone holding ag on page 80.

Calculation of earnings per share 2016 2015
Consolidated profit CHF 36 147 000 30 821 000
Weighted average number of shares outstanding Pieces 32 179 994 32 195 697
Earnings per share CHF 1.12 0.96

In April 2016, a dividend of CHF 0.60 per share (2015: CHF 0.60) was paid to the shareholders. 

Deferral (CHF 000) 2016 2015
 Sales of goods 5 247 3 225
 Cost of goods and materials 3 500 5 343
 Personnel costs 2 042 2 838
 Other 3 474 342
Total deferral 14 263 11 748

Other current liabilities (CHF 000) 2016 2015
 VAT 6 228 6 934
 Social security costs 457 923
 Earnout payable 14 560 10 395
 Other 1 371 3 143
Total other current liabilities 22 616 21 395

Other long-term accounts payable (CHF 000) 2016 2015
 Earnout payable 7 087 14 239
Total other long-term accounts payable 7 087 14 239
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Financial liabilities (CHF 000) 2016 2015
 Short-term bank loans 56 545 29 750
 Long-term bank loans 36 640 49 800
Total bank liabilities 93 185 79 550

The interest rates for loans with fixed rates are between 1.39 percent and 1.85 percent. The interest 
rates for loans with variable rates are between 2.03 percent and 2.44 percent. 

Remaining time to maturity (CHF 000) 2016 2015
 Up to 1 Year 56 545 29 750
 Between 1 and 5 years 36 640 41 640
 More than 5 years 0 8 160
Total bank liabilities 93 185 79 550

Goodwill treatment
Goodwill has been offset against retained earnings (retained earnings) at the time of acquisition. 
The resulting effects on shareholders’ equity and on profit or loss are documented below based on 
the assumption of a useful life of goodwill of 5 years.

Effect of a theoretical capitalization of goodwill on the statement of financial position:

Statement of financial position (CHF 000) 2016 2015

Stated shareholders’ equity –3 294 –12 142

Acquisition value goodwill
At the beginning of the fiscal year 91 942 37 317
 Additions 7 784 54 625
 Disposals 0 0
At the end of the fiscal year 99 726 91 942

Accumulated amortization
At the beginning of the fiscal year 32 674 18 659
 Amortization current year 17 297 14 015
 Disposals 0 0
At the end of the fiscal year 49 971 32 674

Theoretical net book value goodwill 49 755 59 268

Theoretical shareholders’ equity without offsetting of goodwill 46 461 47 126

Effect of a theoretical amortization of goodwill on results:

Income statement (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Income statement 36 147 30 821
Theoretical amortization of goodwill –17 297 –14 015
Consolidated profit after amortization of goodwill 18 850 16 806

18
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Operative leasing
As of December 31, 2016, mobilezone Group operated in 129 shops (2015: 127) all across Switzer-
land, all of which were leased. Leases typically have a fixed term of 5 years, with an option to renew 
for several years.

As of the balance sheet date, future payments for shops and other long-term contracts with fixed 
term are coming due as follows:

2016 (CHF 000) Premises Other Total
Less than 1 year 9 736 639 10 375
Between 1 and 5 years 19 339 791 20 130
More than 5 years 1 571 3 1 574
Total 30 646 1 433 32 079

2015 (CHF 000) Premises Other Total
Less than 1 year 10 446 553 10 999
Between 1 and 5 years 21 498 736 22 234
More than 5 years 1 561 0 1 561
Total 33 505 1 289 34 794

In the reporting year 2016, the amount of CHF 11,096,000 (2015: CHF  11,241,000) was  recognized 
as an expense from operating leases in the income statement. 

Contingent liabilities and future commitments, capital commitments,  
and restrictions of ownership

Per December 31, 2016, trade accounts receivable in the amount of CHF 46,377,000 (2015:  
CHF 40,610,000) are pledged for a credit line at a bank. 

There are no further items requiring disclosure. 

Risk assessment
As the parent company of the mobilezone Group companies, mobilezone holding ag is deeply 
involved in the risk assessment process across all Group companies. The risk assessment process 
is integrated into the Group’s annual strategy process. The aim is not to avoid all risk but rather to 
create options that are intended to help the Group companies to consistently take advantage of 
existing opportunities and to increase their business success. Risk management supports the 
companies in reaching their business goals by providing transparency regarding the risk situa-
tion (as a basis for strategic and operating decisions), by recognizing potential threats to the 
Group’s net assets, financial position and profit situation, and by taking measures to limit risks to 
an acceptable level.

In connection with this risk assessment process, the Board of Directors of mobilezone holding ag is 
kept informed about any observed risks and opportunities.
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Relationship with related parties and companies
Related parties and companies are organizations in which mobilezone participates significantly as 
well as members of the Board of Directors, Group Management, their close relatives, and key 
shareholders, including companies controlled by them. All transactions in the total amount are 
conducted at market values.

Dr. Andreas M. Schönenberger was a member of the Board of Directors from 2014 until the day of 
the 2016 General Meeting. From January 2014 to February 2016 he was both a member of the Board 
of Directors and CEO of Boxalino AG. Boxalino provides services in the areas of artificial intelli-
gence, neuromarketing, online marketing, data analysis, usability, e-commerce, and software devel-
opment.

Andreas M. Blaser has been a member of the Board of Directors since April 7, 2016. He is also a 
member of the Board of Directors of the management consulting firm Blaser Meewes & Partner AG, 
which is involved in mobilezone’s current Omnichannel project.

Since the acquisition of einsAmobile Management GmbH at the end of March 2015, the company 
Mister Mobile GmbH is part of the mobilezone Group. einsAmobile Management GmbH holds 75 
percent of the voting and capital shares of Mister Mobile GmbH. 

Transactions and balances with related  
parties and companies (CHF 000) 2016 2015

Sales of goods 5 029 1 059
Cost of goods and materials 25 1
Cost of services 1 828 545
Financial income 86 32
Accounts receivable 1 740 1 691
Accounts payable 180 271
 
Significant shareholders 
The shares in mobilezone ag are broadly distributed. Significant shareholders are listed in the an-
nual financial statements on page 80.

Compensation to Members of the Board of Directors and the Group Management 
Members of the Group management may choose to receive part of any bonus either in cash or in 
the form of mobilezone holding ag shares subject to a three-year blocking period. Further details 
about the compensation paid to the Members of the Board of Directors and the Group Manage-
ment can be found in the compensation report on pages 38 to 41. 

Events following the balance sheet date
No other significant events have occurred after the balance sheet date. On March 7, 2017, the Board 
of Directors released these consolidated financial statements for publication. The Board of Direc-
tors will submit these consolidated financial statements to the General Meeting on April 6, 2017, 
and propose that they be approved.
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January 1 to December 31 (CHF 000) 2016 2015

Dividend income 15 021 10 001
Other financial income 1 913 2 453
Other operating income 2 066 6 860
Total income 19 000 19 314

Financial expenses 1 479 2 313
Personnel costs 2 068 2 355
Other operating costs 330 402
Depreciation property, plant & equipment 32 58
Income tax expense –449 386
Total expenses 3 460 5 514

Net profit 15 540 13 800

Income statement
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As of December 31 (CHF 000) Notes 2016 2015

Assets

Current assets
Cash & cash equivalents 1 312 3 378
Other current accounts receivable 5 72 032 72 636
Accruals 6 2 051 0
Total current assets 75 395 76 014

Fixed assets
Financial assets 7 40 362 40 692
Investments 8 39 817 39 817
Property, plant & equipment 41 64
Total fixed assets 80 220 80 573

Total Assets 155 615 156 587

Liabilities & shareholders’ equity 

Current liabilities
Current interest-bearing liabilities 9 62 058 45 181
Other current liabilities 10 70 438
Deferral 11 2 126 2 694
Total current liabilities 64 254 48 313

Long-term liabilities
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 12 36 640 49 800
Total long-term liabilities 36 640 49 800

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 13 322 322
Legally required profit reserve 131 131
Voluntary profit reserve 6 098 6 098
Own capital shares 14 0 0
Available earnings 48 170 51 923
Total shareholders’ equity 54 721 58 474

Total liabilities & shareholders’ equity 155 615 156 587

Balance sheet
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Notes to the financial statements

Principles
General 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Swiss accoun-
ting legislation (Title 32 of the Swiss Code of Obligations). A description of the essential valuation 
principles that were applied but are not prescribed by law follows below.

Financial assets 
The financial assets include long-term loans. Loans granted in foreign currency are valued at the 
exchange rate on the effective date.

Investments
Investments are capitalized at cost minus any necessary value adjustments. Investments that are 
significant are valued individually, but those that are similar in nature are usually valued together as 
a group.  

Own capital shares 
Treasury shares are recognised at acquisition costs as a debit item in shareholders’ equity at the 
time of acquisition. Upon resale, the gain or loss will be recognised in the income statement as fi-
nancial income or expense. 

Dispensing with a cash flow statement and additional information in the Notes
Since mobilezone holding ag prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with a 
recognised accounting standard (Swiss GAAP FER), the company has decided, in accordance 
with the pertinent legal provisions, to dispense in these financial statements with the informati-
on in the Notes regarding interest-bearing liabilities and auditing fees as well with a cash flow 
 statement. 
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Details regarding the financial statements
Other current accounts receivable from (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Group companies 71 549 72 575
Third parties 483 61
Total 72 032 72 636

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
The line “Prepaid expenses and deferred charges” includes a position vis-à-vis a Group company. 

Financial assets
The financial assets include a long-term loan to a Group company. 

Direct and indirect holdings investments
Company Corporate 

headquarters
Currency Equity 

capital   
(000)  

Capital / 
voting share 

31.12.16

Capital / 
voting share 

31.12.15
mobilezone ag CH-Regensdorf CHF 2 850 100% 100%
mobilezone business ag CH-Urnäsch CHF 100 100% 100%
mobilezone service ag CH-Urnäsch CHF 100 100% 100%
einsAmobile GmbH D-Obertshausen EUR 50 100% 100%
einsAmobile Management GmbH D-Obertshausen EUR 25 100% 100%
Mister Mobile GmbH D-Obertshausen EUR 25 75% 75%
TalkTalk AG CH-Zug CHF 100 100% 100%
mobiletouch ag CH-Zweidlen CHF 100 100% 100%
mobiletouch austria gmbH A-Wien EUR 35 100% 100%

Current interest- bearing liabilities (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Group companies 24 898 21 981
Banks 37 160 23 200
Total 62 058 45 181

The current interest-bearing liabilities to Group companies include current accounts.

Current accounts payable to (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Group companies 15 16
Third parties 55 422
Total 70 438

Deferrals (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Organs 300 275
Third parties 1 826 2 419
Total deferral 2 126 2 694

mobilezone holding ag financial statements
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Long-term interest-bearing liabilities
The long-term loans are bank loans

Share capital and authorized capital
The share capital consists of 32,195,697 registered shares (2015: 32,195,697 bearer shares) at a par 
value of CHF 0.01 each. As of the balance sheet date, there was no authorized share capital and no 
conditional share capital. In June 2015, the 3,577,299 shares obtained from the share buyback pro-
gram of April 2014 were destroyed for the purpose of capital reduction in accordance with the re-
solution of the annual General Meeting of April 9, 2015. 

Own equity shares
Change in number of  
treasury shares

Number of 
shares 

Maximum 
in CHF

Price in  
CHF average  

Minimum 
in CHF

Total  
(CHF 000)

As of January 1, 2015 3 577 299 35 839
Capital reduction –3 577 299 10.00 10.00 10.00 –35 839
Purchases at cost prices 943 026 12.75 12.75 12.75 12 024
Disposals at sales prices 943 026 11.67 11.67 11.67 –11 010
Income from stock price –1 014
As of December 31, 2015 0 0

Purchases 120 000 14.00 13.10 12.30 1 573
Disposals –120 000 14.00 13.61 13.30 –1 634
Income from stock price 61
As of December 31, 2016 0 0

In the reporting year, treasury shares were sold at a profit of CHF 61,000 (2015: loss of CHF 1,014,000). 

Significant shareholders 
According to our share register, on December 31, the following significant shareholders and share-
holder groups held more than 3 percent of capital shares and voting rights: 

Company 2016 2015
Patinex AG, Wilen 25.00% 27.43%
Credit Suisse Funds AG, Zürich 6.02% 3.14%
Grapal Holding AG, Zug 3.11% n.a.

On July 11, 2016, Patinex AG reported the dropping out of a direct shareholder and shares 
amounting to 28.95 percent. On July 27, 2016, in accordance with the Stock Exchange Act (BEHG), 
Patinex AG, Wilen / BZ Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Wilen, reported an additional direct shareholder 
and shares amounting to 27.77 percent. 

In accordance with the Stock Exchange Act (BEHG), Credit Suisse Funds AG reported on May 30, 
2016, that it was holding 5.02 percent of shares. On that same day, it reported to have again 
dropped below the threshold of 5 percent. In accordance with the Stock Exchange Act (BEHG), 
Credit Suisse Funds AG reported on June 28, 2016, that it was holding 5.01 percent of shares. 

To our knowledge there is no shareholder’s agreement between the significant shareholders.
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Additional information 
Number of full-time employees
In the reporting year, the average number of full-time employees was 3 (2015: 3).

Contingent liabilities  (CHF 000) 2016 2015
Joint and several liability from VAT – Group taxation p.m. p.m.
Guarantee furnished to a bank for a subsidiary 14 300 14 300

Shareholdings of the Board of Directors and the Group Management

Name Position Number of shares Share value (CHF 000)
2016 2015 2016 2015

Urs T. Fischer Chairman of the  
Board of Directors 1 000 1 000 14 14

Cyrill Schneuwly Member of the  
Board of Directors 2 000 2 000 29 29

Andreas M. Blaser Member of the  
Board of Directors 0 n.a. 0 n.a.

Dr. Andreas M. Schönenberger Member of the  
Board of Directors n.a. 500 n.a. 7

Markus Bernhard Chief Executive Officer 76 182 70 000 1 105 1 005

Andreas Fecker Chief Financial Officer 16 530 3 200 240 46

Werner Waldburger Chief Product Officer 7 000 0 102 0

Events following the balance sheet date
No significant events have occurred after the balance sheet date. 
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The proposal of the Board of Directors of mobilezone holding ag to the General Meeting to be 
held on April 6, 2017, is to dispose of the available earnings 2016 as follows:

Appropriation of available earnings (CHF 000) 2016 2015

Balance brought forward 32 630 73 963
Capital reduction 0 –35 840
Net profit 15 540 13 800
Available earnings at the disposal of the General Meeting 48 170 51 923

Distribution of a dividend of CHF 0.60 (2015: CHF 0.60)  
per bearer share entitled to dividends

19 317 19 293

To be carried forward 28 853 32 630
Total 48 170 51 923

If this proposal is approved, the dividend of CHF 0.60 per registered share, less 35 percent Swiss 
withholding tax (anticipatory tax), will be paid out on April 13, 2017. The last trading day (ex-date) 
entitling shareholders to receive dividend payment is April 10, 2017. Starting on April 11, 2017, the 
company’s shares will be traded ex-dividend. 

Proposal by the Board of Directors
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Shops
AARAU Bahnhofstrasse 11 AFFOLTERN AM ALBIS Coopark Affoltern am Albis, Büelstrasse 15 AIGLE MMM Chablais Centre, Chemin sous le Grand Pré 4 
ARBON Zentrum Novaseta, St. Gallerstrasse 17 BADEN Badstrasse 7 BALERNA Centro Breggia, Via S. Gottardo 56a BASEL Greifengasse 10 | RailCity 
 Basel, Güterstrasse 115 | St. Jakob Park, St. Jakob-Strasse 397 | Freie-Strasse 20 | Barfüsserplatz 15 | EKZ Stücki, Hochbergerstrasse 70 BELLINZONA Viale 
Stazione BERN Waaghaus-Passage 8 | EKZ Westside, Gilberte-de-Courgenay-Platz 4 | EKZ Wankdorf, Papiermühlestrasse 85 BIASCA Via Lucomagno 17 
BIEL Centre Boujean, Zürichstrasse 24 | Unionsgasse 20/Nidaugasse 18 | Bahnhofstrasse 6  BREMGARTEN EKZ Sunne-Märt, Sonnengutstrasse 2 BRIG 
Bahnhofstrasse 4 BRUGG Neumarktplatz 5 BUCHS AG EKZ Wynecenter, Bresteneggstrasse 9B BUCHS SG EKZ City-Shopping Bahnhofstrasse 43 
 BÜLACH-SÜD EKZ Migros Center Bülach-Süd, Feldstrasse 85 BULLE Grand Rue 30 BURGDORF EKZ Neumarkt, Lyssachstrasse 27 CHUR EKZ City Shop 
Chur, Quaderstrasse 8  COLLOMBEY CC Parc du Rhône, Route du Montagnier CRISSIER MMM Centre Crissier, Chemin de Closalet 7 DELÉMONT 
 Avenue de la Gare 42 ECUBLENS Centre commercial du Croset 1 EFFRETIKON EKZ Effi-Märt, Märtplatz 5 EGER KINGEN Gäupark Pavillon, 
 Hausimollstrasse 1 EMMENBRÜCKE Emmen Center, Stauffacherstrasse 1 FRAUENFELD EKZ Passage, Bahnhofstrasse 70 FRIBOURG EKZ Fribourg- 
Centre, Avenue de la Gare 10 GENÈVE CC Eaux-Vives 2000, Rue de Jargonnant 3 | CC Lancy-Centre, Rte. de Chancy 71 | CC Planète Charmilles, Prome-
nade de l’Europe 11 | CC Les Cygnes, Rue de Lausanne 16–20 | Rue de Carouge 18 | Rue du Mont-Blanc 17 | CC La Praille, Route des Jeunes 10 | CC 
 Balexert, Avenue Louis-Casaï 27 | GENÈVE-THÔNEX Thônex Centre Commercial, Rue de Genève 106 GLARUS Schweizerhofstrasse 7 GLATTZENTRUM 
EKZ Glatt, Neue Winterthurerstrasse 99 GOSSAU St. Gallerstrasse 17 GRANCIA Parco Commerciale Grancia HINWIL EKZ Coop  Megastore, Wässeri-
strasse 38 IBACH EKZ Mythen-Center, Mythencenterstrasse 18 INTERLAKEN Rugenpark, Rugenparkstrasse 1 KÖNIZ EKZ Bläuacker, Bläuacker 10 KREUZ-
LINGEN Hauptstrasse 49a KRIENS EKZ Pilatusmarkt Kriens, Ringstrasse 19 LA CHAUX-DE-FONDS CC des Eplatures, Boulevard des Eplatures 20 | CC Les 
Entilles Centre, Avenue Léopold-Robert 151 LANGENDORF Ladedorf Langendorf, Fabrikstrasse 6 LANGENTHAL Bärenplatz, Marktgasse 12–14 LAUSAN-
NE Rue Haldimand 5 | Rue Mauborget 12 LENZBURG- STAUFEN EKZ Lenzopark, Aarauerstrasse 21 LOCARNO Largo Zorzi 8 LUGANO Palazzo Ransila, Via 
Pretorio 9/Corso Pestalozzi 3 LUZERN Kapellgasse 7 | Kramgasse 5 | Pilatusstrasse 7 | Shoppingcenter Schönbühl, Langensand strasse 23 | Bahnhof, Zen-
tralstrasse 1 LYSS Hirschenplatz 1A MANNO Via Cantonale 43 MARTIGNY CC Manoir, Place du Manoir MELS Pizol Center, Grossfeldstrasse 63 MEYRIN 
CC de Meyrin, Avenue de Feuillasse 24 MONTREUX Place de la Paix  NEUCHÂTEL Rue de Seyon 6 | CC La Maladière, Rue Pierre-à-Mazel 10 OFTRIN-
GEN Perry-Center, Bernerstrasse | EKZ A1, Spital weid 2 OLTEN EKZ Sälipark, Louis-Giroud-Strasse 26 PAYERNE Grande Rue 35 PFÄFFIKON Seedamm- 
Center, Gwattstrasse 11 PRATTELN EKZ Grüssen Pratteln, Grüssenweg 10 RAPPERSWIL Zentrum Sonnenhof, Zürcherstrasse 4 REGENSDORF Zentrum 
Regensdorf, Zentrum 1 | Riedthofstrasse 124 RENENS CC Migros Métropole, Rue de la mèbre 9 RORSCHACH Hauptstrasse 67 SARNEN EKZ Sarnen- 
Center, Nelkenstrasse 5 SCHAFFHAUSEN EKZ Herblinger-Markt, Stüdliacker strasse 10 | Vorstadt 8 SCHÖNBÜHL Shoppyland Industriestrasse 20 SIERRE 
CC Sierre, Noës SIGNY CC Signy-Centre, Rue de Fléchères 7A SION Rue de la Porte- Neuve 26 SOLOTHURN Hauptgasse 38 SPREITENBACH EKZ Shop-
pi Tivoli, Center Mall, Hochhaus 9 ST. GALLEN EKZ Shopping Arena, Zürcher strasse 462 | EKZ Neumarkt 1, St.-Leonhardstrasse 35 | Multergasse 31 MOR-
BIO Centro Serfontana, Viale Serfontana 20 ST. MARGRETHEN EKZ Rheinpark, Neudorfstrasse 60 STANS EKZ Länderpark, Bitzistrasse 2 STEINHAUSEN 
EKZ Zugerland, Hinterbergstrasse 40 SURSEE EKZ  Surseepark, Bahnhof strasse 28 THALWIL Gotthardstrasse 44 THUN Bälliz 62 | EKZ Oberland, Talacker-
strasse 62 USTER EKZ Illuster, Zürichstrasse 14 UZWIL EKZ Mühlehof, Bahnhof strasse 82 VEVEY CC St. Antoine, Avenue du Général-Guisan 15 VILLARS-
SUR-GLÂNE CC Moncor, Route de Moncor 1 VISP Bahnhofstrasse 2 VOLKETSWIL EKZ Volki-Land, Industriestrasse 1 WEINFELDEN Zentrums-Passage, 
 Rathausstrasse 17 WIL  Obere Bahnhofstrasse 21 WINTERTHUR Untertor 13 | EKZ Rosenberg, Schaffhauserstrasse 152 WOHLEN EKZ Arena, Bahnhof-
strasse 7 YVERDON Rue du Lac 24 ZUG EKZ Metalli, Baarerstrasse 16 ZÜRICH EKZ Neumarkt, Hofwiesenstrasse 350 | EKZ Letzipark, Baslerstrasse 50 | 
EKZ Sihlcity, Kalanderplatz 1 | Shopville Hauptbahnhof, Bahnhofpassage | Bellevue, Theaterstrasse 12 | Löwenstrasse 54

Legende: EKZ = Shopping-Center, CC = Centre Commercial 

Companies 
MOBILEZONE HOLDING AG Riedthofstrasse 124, 8105 Regensdorf, Telefon: +41 (0)43 388 77 11, Fax: +41 (0)43 388 77 92, E-Mail: mobilezoneholding@
mobilezone.ch, www.mobilezone.ch, Investor Relations: Markus Bernhard, Media  Relations: Markus Bernhard MOBILEZONE AG Riedthofstrasse 124, 
8105 Regensdorf, Telefon: +41 (0)43 388 77 11, E-Mail: info@mobilezone.ch, www.mobilezone.ch MOBILEZONE SERVICE AG Bahnweg 4, CH-9107  
Urnäsch, Telefon +41 71 421 46 68, E-Mail: service@mobilezone.ch, www.mobilezone.ch TALKTALK AG Poststrasse 18, 6301 Zug, E-Mail:  
info@talktalk.ch, www.talktalk.ch MOBILEZONE BUSINESS AG Bahnweg 4, 9107 Urnäsch, Telefon: +41 (0)71 364 11 13, E-Mail: business@mobilezone.ch, 
www.mobilezone.ch/b2b MOBILETOUCH AG Riverside, 8192 Zweidlen, Telefon: +41 (0)840 303 303, E-Mail: info@mobiletouch.ch, www.mobiletouch.ch 
MOBILETOUCH AUSTRIA GMBH Lemböckgasse 49, A-1230 Wien, Telefon: +43 (0)1 866 49 0, E-Mail: office@mobiletouch.at, www.mobiletouch.at  
EINSAMOBILE GMBH Samerwiesen 6, D-63179 Obertshausen, Telefon +49 6104 405 70, E-Mail: kontakt@einsamobile.de, www.einsamobile.de  
EINSAMOBILE MANAGEMENT GMBH Samerwiesen 6, D-63179 Obertshausen, Telefon +49 6104 405 70, E-Mail: kontakt@einsamobile.de, www.einsa-
mobile.de MISTER MOBILE GMBH Samerwiesen 6, D-63179 Obertshausen, Telefon +49 30 223 865 18, E-Mail: info@deinhandy.de, www.deinhandy.de

Adresses
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